
Page 113 of 137

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
 
LCAP Year: 2019-20 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$2,936,601  23.79% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Pierce Joint Unified School District has planned expenditures on a district-wide and school-wide basis due to the fact that our 
unduplicated student count is 73.9%. Because our English Learners, Low Income Students, and Foster Youth generate these dollars, 
those students will be targeted specifically for the planned services, but any student, regardless of whether or not they are an English 
Learner, Low Income Student or Foster Youth, will be eligible for the service if the service is needed to improve academic and/or 
social and emotional needs that lead to the district meeting its goals. Services in the plan include: teacher training, academic 
intervention, technology-driven intervention resources, social-emotional and behavioral support, English Learner support, college and 
career readiness, parent involvement, class size reduction, extended learning time, assessment systems, and after school enrichment 
activities including transportation. 
 
Pierce Joint Unified is expending the majority of its Supplemental and Concentrated funds district and school-wide as stated above 
with targeted students as a priority. 
 
The following added services are planned for 2019/20: 

 Offer Elevate math summer program 
 Hire art teacher 
 Add two additional days to summer school 
 Chromebook take-home initiative in grades 7-12 
 UC Davis C-STEM program implementation 

The following services that were added in previous years and are ongoing unless specified: 

218



Page 114 of 137

 Hired additional English teacher at the middle school so 7th/8th grade students have two periods of English Language Arts 
(18/19) 

 Purchased online curriculum for use in-lieu of suspensions (18/19) 
 Provided 2 sections of math intervention for 7th/8th grade students (18/19) 
 Provided 6 sections of Academic Advancement for 7th/8th grade students (18/19) 
 Offered Long-term Independent Study option (18/19) 
 Increased campus supervision for locker room to 3 additional class periods, making it a total of four (18/19) 
 Provided training to staff on trauma and Social Emotional Learning (18/19) 
 Purchased Character Development program for elementary schools (18/19) 
 Purchased visitor and emergency management software platform for improved security (18/19) 
 Purchased skill development software to be utilized at the middle school during Academic Advancement period (18/19) 
 Hired additional 6th grade teacher (17/18 only) 
 Hired two new para-educators to support extended-day Kindergarten (17/18) 
 Hired campus supervisors for locker room supervision for PE to allow a PE teacher at the middle school all day to ensure 

balanced class sizes in all courses (17/18) 
 Purchased additional Chromebooks to accommodate the new kindergarten classrooms (17/18 only) 
 Hired a consultant to deliver staff development for Next Generation Science Standards (17/18) 
 Provided breakfast in the classroom for all Transitional Kindergartners and Kindergartners at Arbuckle Elementary (17/18) 
 Hired district-wide instructional coach (16/17) 
 Created high school media center with online research resources (16/17) 
 Added computer teacher to the middle school (16/17) 
 Purchased curriculum to support Special Education classes (16/17) 
 Added ELD teacher specifically for middle school for designated support (16/17) 
 Offered college/career field trip opportunities to middle school students (16/17) 
 Equipped buses with video camera systems (16/17) 
 Hired an additional music teacher (16/17) 
 Hired a part-time nurse and part-time health clerk (16/17) 
 One additional staff development day added for teachers to improve their content knowledge and instructional delivery (15-16) 
 School sites reviewed and determined ELA curriculum adoption materials (15-16) 
 Hired tutor to support students after school at the high school (15-16) 
 Purchased additional library books at the elementary and middle schools to give students more variety and serve the reading 

level of all students (15-16) 
 Strategic planning held for administrators to set the professional development path for teachers, including EL strategies (15-

16) 
 Hired .5 FTE to teach ELD at Arbuckle Elementary to have a total of 1.5 ELD teachers (15-16) 
 Edivate online teacher resource tool was implemented to assist teachers with continual improvement (15-16) 
 AP exam costs began being paid by the district so that all students in an AP class will take the AP exam (15-16) 
 3 week summer school program for students not meeting proficiency (15-16) 

219



Page 115 of 137

 Purchased ST math subscriptions for grades TK-6 and 7 & 8 grade intervention licenses to build math concept knowledge 
(15-16) 

 Purchased NWEA and MAP assessments to be able to gauge student progress throughout the school year (15-16) 
 Hired college/career technician to support counselor; work with students and parents on goal setting and steps for 

college/career preparation beginning in middle school (15-16) 
 Hired full-time elementary vice principal for student support (15-16) 
 Hired additional PE teacher for smaller class sizes, and this increase created grade level collaboration time for planning 

because entire grade levels will have PE at the same time (15-16) 
 Began College and Career Club program in grades 7 and 8. (15-16) 
 Added band to 9th graders schedule as a course offering during 7th period (15-16) 
 Trained parents on how to access new abi.net portal to allow them to see students’ attendance and grades (15-16) 
 Communicated with parents regarding high school requirements for students and college and career options for students (15-

16) 
 Created district App for Smart Phones as a means for parent communication (15-16) 
 Offered Parent Institute for Quality Education (PIQE) workshops for parents on information regarding the schooling system 

(15-16) 
 Teacher and administrative training on EL strategies, instructional strategies, assessment strategies, Common Core, STEM, 

NGSS and technology both on and off-site (14-15) 
 Math Common Core materials being utilized (14-15) 
 Utilization of Illuminate as assessment data information system (14-15) 
 Para-educator time at Grand Island to support combination classrooms and high EL student population (14-15) 
 .5 FTE for ELD teacher at Grand Island (14-15) 
 Agriculture, wood fabrication class as a CTE course (14-15) 
 Teachers hired for K-3 CSR and 5th grade teacher to keep class sizes lower (14-15) 
 Purchase Chromebooks so that we are at 1:1 with devices in grades 2-12 (14-15) 
 Technology employee maintains devices and provides teachers with training in the area of technology (14-15) 
 Transportation for late bus route to extend school day for intervention participation (14-15) 
 Two staff development days added to teacher calendar through negotiations (14-15) 
 Salary and health benefits increase to retain trained, quality staff (14-15) 
 Teacher induction paid by the district for beginning teachers (14-15) 
 Full-time prevention/intervention counselor (14-15) 
 Sacramento State Summer Academy tuition paid and transportation provided for 9-11 graders (14-15) 
 Teachers provide intervention and instruction after school (14-15) 
 School clubs and activities for academic enrichment (14-15) 
 Campus supervisor position for students waiting to take the late bus (14-15) 
 Para-professional for TK classroom (14-15) 
 ROP/CTE courses (14-15) 
 Parent college visit to Sacramento State (14-15) 

220



Page 116 of 137

 Edu-link messaging contract for parent communication (14-15) 
 EL academic support periods at high school level (14-15) 
 Reading Intervention Teacher at elementary school (14-15) 
 EL support class provided by para-educator at kindergarten (14-15) 

 
------- 
------- 

 
LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$2,716,669  23% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Pierce Joint Unified School District has planned expenditures on a district-wide and school-wide basis due to the fact that our 
unduplicated student count is 73%. Because our English Learners, Low Income Students, and Foster Youth generate these dollars, 
those students will be targeted specifically for the planned services, but any student, regardless of whether or not they are an English 
Learner, Low Income Student or Foster Youth, will be eligible for the service if the service is needed to improve academic and/or 
social and emotional needs that lead to the district meeting its goals. Services in the plan include: teacher training, academic 
intervention, technology-driven intervention resources, social-emotional and behavioral support, English Learner support, college and 
career readiness, parent involvement, class size reduction, extended learning time, assessment systems, and after school enrichment 
activities including transportation. 
 
Pierce Joint Unified is expending the majority of its Supplemental and Concentrated funds district and school-wide as stated above 
with targeted students as a priority. 
 

221



Page 117 of 137

The following added services are planned for 2018/19: 
 Hire additional English teacher at the middle school so 7th/8th grade students have two periods of English Language Arts 
 Purchase online curriculum for use in-lieu of suspensions 
 Provide 2 sections of math intervention for 7th/8th grade students 
 Provide 6 sections of Academic Advancement for 7th/8th grade students 
 Offer Long-term Independent Study option 
 Increase campus supervision for locker room to 3 additional class periods, making it a total of four 
 Provide training to staff on trauma and Social Emotional Learning 
 Purchase Character Development program for elementary schools 
 Purchase visitor and emergency management software platform for improved security 
 Purchase skill development software to be utilized at the middle school during Academic Advancement period 

The following services that were added in previous years and are ongoing unless specified: 
 Hire additional 6th grade teacher (17/18 only) 
 Hire two new para-educators to support extended-day Kindergarten (17/18) 
 Hire campus supervisors for locker room supervision for PE to allow a PE teacher at the middle school all day to ensure 

balanced class sizes in all courses (17/18) 
 Purchase additional Chromebooks to accommodate the new kindergarten classrooms (17/18 only) 
 Hire a consultant to deliver staff development for Next Generation Science Standards (17/18) 
 Provide breakfast in the classroom for all Transitional Kindergartners and Kindergartners at Arbuckle Elementary (17/18) 
 Hire district-wide instructional coach (16/17) 
 Create high school media center with online research resources (16/17) 
 Add computer teacher to the middle school (16/17) 
 Purchase curriculum to support Special Education classes (16/17) 
 Add ELD teacher specifically for middle school for designated support (16/17) 
 Offer college/career field trip opportunities to middle school students (16/17) 
 Equip buses with video camera systems (16/17) 
 Hire an additional music teacher (16/17) 
 Hire a part-time nurse and part-time health clerk (16/17) 
 One additional staff development day added for teachers to improve their content knowledge and instructional delivery (15-16) 
 School sites reviewed and determined ELA curriculum adoption materials (15-16) 
 Hired tutor to support students after school at the high school (15-16) 
 Purchase additional library books at the elementary and middle schools to give students more variety and serve the reading 

level of all students (15-16) 
 Strategic planning held for administrators to set the professional development path for teachers, including EL strategies (15-

16) 
 Hired .5 FTE to teach ELD at Arbuckle Elementary to have a total of 1.5 ELD teachers (15-16) 
 Edivate online teacher resource tool was implemented to assist teachers with continual improvement (15-16) 

222



Page 118 of 137

 AP exam costs began being paid by the district so that all students in an AP class will take the AP exam (15-16) 
 3 week summer school program for students not meeting proficiency (15-16) 
 Purchased ST math subscriptions for grades TK-6 and 7 & 8 grade intervention licenses to build math concept knowledge 

(15-16) 
 Purchased NWEA and MAP assessments to be able to gauge student progress throughout the school year (15-16) 
 Hired college/career technician to support counselor; work with students and parents on goal setting and steps for 

college/career preparation beginning in middle school (15-16) 
 Hired full-time elementary vice principal for student support (15-16) 
 Hired additional PE teacher for smaller class sizes, and this increase created grade level collaboration time for planning 

because entire grade levels will have PE at the same time (15-16) 
 Began College and Career Club program in grades 7 and 8. (15-16) 
 Added band to 9th graders schedule as a course offering during 7th period (15-16) 
 Trained parents on how to access new abi.net portal to allow them to see students’ attendance and grades (15-16) 
 Communicated with parents regarding high school requirements for students and college and career options for students (15-

16) 
 Created district App for Smart Phones as a means for parent communication (15-16) 
 Offered Parent Institute for Quality Education (PIQE) workshops for parents on information regarding the schooling system 

(15-16) 
 Teacher and administrative training on EL strategies, instructional strategies, assessment strategies, Common Core, STEM, 

NGSS and technology both on and off-site (14-15) 
 Math Common Core materials being utilized (14-15) 
 Utilization of Illuminate as assessment data information system (14-15) 
 Para-educator time at Grand Island to support combination classrooms and high EL student population (14-15) 
 .5 FTE for ELD teacher at Grand Island (14-15) 
 Agriculture, wood fabrication class as a CTE course (14-15) 
 Teachers hired for K-3 CSR and 5th grade teacher to keep class sizes lower (14-15) 
 Purchase Chromebooks so that we are at 1:1 with devices in grades 2-12 (14-15) 
 Technology employee maintains devices and provides teachers with training in the area of technology (14-15) 
 Transportation for late bus route to extend school day for intervention participation (14-15) 
 Two staff development days added to teacher calendar through negotiations (14-15) 
 Salary and health benefits increase to retain trained, quality staff (14-15) 
 Teacher induction paid by the district for beginning teachers (14-15) 
 Full-time prevention/intervention counselor (14-15) 
 Sacramento State Summer Academy tuition paid and transportation provided for 9-11 graders (14-15) 
 Teachers provide intervention and instruction after school (14-15) 
 School clubs and activities for academic enrichment (14-15) 
 Campus supervisor position for students waiting to take the late bus (14-15) 
 Para-professional for TK classroom (14-15) 

223



Page 119 of 137

 ROP/CTE courses (14-15) 
 Parent college visit to Sacramento State (14-15) 
 Edu-link messaging contract for parent communication (14-15) 
 EL academic support periods at high school level (14-15) 
 Reading Intervention Teacher at elementary school (14-15) 
 EL support class provided by para-educator at kindergarten (14-15) 

 
------- 
------- 
 
LCAP Year: 2017-18 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$2,275,350  20.12% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Pierce Joint Unified School District has planned expenditures on a district-wide and school-wide basis due to the fact that our 
unduplicated student count is _70.90__%. Because our English Learners and Low Income Students generate these dollars, those 
students will be targeted specifically for the planned services, but any student, regardless of whether or not they are an English 
Learner or Low Income Student, will be eligible for the service if the service is needed to improve academic and/or social and 
emotional needs that lead to the district meeting its goals. Services in the plan include: teacher training, academic intervention, 
technology-driven intervention resources, social-emotional and behavioral support, English Learner support, college and career 
readiness, parent involvement, class size reduction, extended learning time, assessment systems, and after school enrichment 
activities including transportation. 
 
Pierce Joint Unified is expending the majority of its Supplemental and Concentrated funds district and school-wide as stated above 
with targeted students as a priority. 

224



Page 120 of 137

 
The following added services are planned for 2017/18: 

 Hire additional 6th grade teacher 
 Hire two new para-educators to support extended-day Kindergarten 
 Hire campus supervisors for locker room supervision for PE to allow a PE teacher at the middle school all day to ensure 

balanced class sizes in all courses 
 Purchase additional Chromebooks to accommodate the new kindergarten classrooms 
 Hire a consultant to deliver staff development for Next Generation Science Standards 
 Provide breakfast in the classroom for all Transitional Kindergartners and Kindergartners at Arbuckle Elementary 

The following services that were added in previous years and are ongoing: 
 Hire district-wide instructional coach (16/17) 
 Create high school media center with online research resources (16/17) 
 Add computer teacher to the middle school (16/17) 
 Purchase curriculum to support Special Education classes (16/17) 
 Add ELD teacher specifically for middle school for designated support (16/17) 
 Offer college/career field trip opportunities to middle school students (16/17) 
 Equip buses with video camera systems (16/17) 
 Hire an additional music teacher (16/17) 
 Hire a part-time nurse and part-time health clerk (16/17) 
 One additional staff development day added for teachers to improve their content knowledge and instructional delivery (15-16) 
 School sites reviewed and determined ELA curriculum adoption materials (15-16) 
 Hired tutor to support students after school at the high school (15-16) 
 Purchase additional library books at the elementary and middle schools to give students more variety and serve the reading 

level of all students (15-16) 
 Strategic planning held for administrators to set the professional development path for teachers, including EL strategies (15-

16) 
 Hired .5 FTE to teach ELD at Arbuckle Elementary to have a total of 1.5 ELD teachers (15-16) 
 Edivate online teacher resource tool was implemented to assist teachers with continual improvement (15-16) 
 AP exam costs began being paid by the district so that all students in an AP class will take the AP exam (15-16) 
 3 week summer school program for students not meeting proficiency (15-16) 
 Purchased ST math subscriptions for grades TK-6 and 7 & 8 grade intervention licenses to build math concept knowledge 

(15-16) 
 Purchased NWEA and MAP assessments to be able to gauge student progress throughout the school year (15-16) 
 Hired college/career technician to support counselor; work with students and parents on goal setting and steps for 

college/career preparation beginning in middle school (15-16) 
 Hired full-time elementary vice principal for student support (15-16) 

225



Page 121 of 137

 Hired additional PE teacher for smaller class sizes, and this increase created grade level collaboration time for planning 
because entire grade levels will have PE at the same time (15-16) 

 Began College and Career Club program in grades 7 and 8. (15-16) 
 Added band to 9th graders schedule as a course offering during 7th period (15-16) 
 Trained parents on how to access new abi.net portal to allow them to see students’ attendance and grades (15-16) 
 Communicated with parents regarding high school requirements for students and college and career options for students (15-

16) 
 Created district App for Smart Phones as a means for parent communication (15-16) 
 Offered Parent Institute for Quality Education (PIQE) workshops for parents on information regarding the schooling system 

(15-16) 
 Teacher and administrative training on EL strategies, instructional strategies, assessment strategies, Common Core, STEM, 

NGSS and technology both on and off-site (14-15) 
 Math Common Core materials being utilized (14-15) 
 Utilization of Illuminate as assessment data information system (14-15) 
 Para-educator time at Grand Island to support combination classrooms and high EL student population (14-15) 
 .5 FTE for ELD teacher at Grand Island (14-15) 
 Agriculture, wood fabrication class as a CTE course (14-15) 
 Teachers hired for K-3 CSR and 5th grade teacher to keep class sizes lower (14-15) 
 Purchase Chromebooks so that we are at 1:1 with devices in grades 2-12 (14-15) 
 Technology employee maintains devices and provides teachers with training in the area of technology (14-15) 
 Transportation for late bus route to extend school day for intervention participation (14-15) 
 Two staff development days added to teacher calendar through negotiations (14-15) 
 Salary and health benefits increase to retain trained, quality staff (14-15) 
 Teacher induction paid by the district for beginning teachers (14-15) 
 Full-time prevention/intervention counselor (14-15) 
 Sacramento State Summer Academy tuition paid and transportation provided for 9-11 graders (14-15) 
 Teachers provide intervention and instruction after school (14-15) 
 School clubs and activities for academic enrichment (14-15) 
 Campus supervisor position for students waiting to take the late bus (14-15) 
 Para-professional for TK classroom (14-15) 
 ROP/CTE courses (14-15) 
 Parent college visit to Sacramento State (14-15) 
 Edu-link messaging contract for parent communication (14-15) 
 EL academic support periods at high school level (14-15) 
 Reading Intervention Teacher at elementary school (14-15) 
 EL support class provided by para-educator at kindergarten (14-15) 

------- 

226



Page 122 of 137

------- 

 

227



Page 123 of 137

Addendum 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student 
outcomes and overall performance. The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed and updated 
annually, as required. Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter 
school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. The LCAP and 
Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year. 

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, 
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by 
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English 
learners, foster youth, pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and 
any locally identified priorities. 

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF student group funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile 
court schools, on probation or parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state 
priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may 
additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services funded by a school district that are 
provided to students attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education 
programs.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a 
single LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county 
superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.  

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of 
the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the 
charter school, and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description 
of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the 
nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements 
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the EC. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for 
charter schools that result from the annual update process do not necessarily constitute a material 
revision to the school’s charter petition. 

228



Page 124 of 137

For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
Plan Summary 

Annual Update 

Stakeholder Engagement 

Goals, Actions, and Services 

Planned Actions/Services 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students 
 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please 
contact the local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 
916-319-0809 or by email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.  

Plan Summary 
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a 
fixed three-year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year.  
When developing the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in 
these sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, enter the appropriate LCAP year and 
replace the previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP. 
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA. 
LEAs may also attach documents (e.g., the California School Dashboard data reports) if desired 
and/or include charts illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and 
actual expenditures. 
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information 
specified in each prompt and the budget summary table. 
The reference to California School Dashboard means the California School Dashboard adopted by 
the State Board of Education under EC Section 52064.5.    
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

 Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

 Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in 
developing CSI plans that included a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based 
interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through the 
implementation of the CSI plan. 

 Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate 
the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support student and school 
improvement. 

229

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


Page 125 of 137

 

Annual Update 
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the previous year’s* approved LCAP; in addition, list the state and/or local priorities 
addressed by the planned goals. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.   

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 
2016/17 LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, 
LCAP year 2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 
2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP.  

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as 
compared to the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the 
goal.  

Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these 
actions toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented 
to meet the described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the 
actions/services. As applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, 
or to the planned location of the actions/services provided.   

Analysis 
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the California School 
Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. 
Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated 
goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the 
implementation process.  

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal 
as measured by the LEA. 

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not 
required. 

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided 
in the California School Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing 
the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget 
process. EC identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices 
of education as consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local 
bargaining units of the school district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. EC requires 

230



Page 126 of 137

charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, 
and pupils in developing the LCAP. In addition, EC Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the 
translation of notices, reports, statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian. 
 
The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory 
groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA 
may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet 
specific goals.   

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The 
requirements for this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing 
the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the LCAP and Annual Update. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
enter the appropriate LCAP year and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe 
the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual 
Update. 

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult 
with the Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, 
parents, students, school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community 
to inform the development of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the 
indicated LCAP year. 
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, 
administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of 
the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual 
update for the indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures. 

Goals, Actions, and Services 
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group 
of students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also 
include additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned 
actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to 
implement the specific actions. 

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is 
reviewed and updated annually, as required.   
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the 
charter schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 
2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.   

New, Modified, Unchanged 
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or 
expected annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are 
modified or unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new. 

231



Page 127 of 137

Goal 
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A 
goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are 
directed. A goal answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?   

Related State and/or Local Priorities 
List the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal. The LCAP must include goals that 
address each of the state priorities, as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local 
priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities) 

Identified Need 
Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update 
process or performance data from the California School Dashboard, as applicable. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track 
progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student 
groups. Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric or 
indicator available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. 
The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data as reported in the 
annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the three-year plan, as applicable. The 
baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. In the subsequent 
year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year cycle of the 
LCAP. Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years. 
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable 
required metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  For the student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the 
rates as described in the LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d). 
 

Planned Actions/Services 
For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the 
section “For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement.” The LEA shall not complete both sections for a single action. 

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement 

Students to be Served 
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those 
which are included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or 
improve services for unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from 
the actions/services by entering “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student 
Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” is entered, identify the specific student group(s) as 
appropriate. 

232



Page 128 of 137

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must identify “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identifying the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement: 

Students to be Served 
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or 
improved services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), 
the LEA must identify the unduplicated student group(s) being served.   

Scope of Service 
For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement, identify the scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited 
to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. The LEA must identify one of the following three options: 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the LEA, enter "LEA-wide." 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of a particular school or schools, enter “schoolwide”.  

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students 
identified in “Students to be Served”, enter “Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”.  

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” 
may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools 
operating multiple schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use 
“LEA-wide” to refer to all schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a 
single school authorized within the same charter petition. Charter schools operating a 
single school may use “LEA-wide” or “Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a 
consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

233



Page 129 of 137

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identify the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Actions/Services 
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the 
described goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may 
be grouped together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of 
reference. 

 

New/Modified/Unchanged:  

 Enter “New Action” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of 
the LCAP to meet the articulated goal.  

 Enter “Modified Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal 
and has been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description. 

 Enter “Unchanged Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated 
goal and has not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year 
description.   

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the 
duration of the plan, an LEA may enter “Unchanged Action” and leave the 
subsequent year columns blank rather than having to copy/paste the 
action/service into the subsequent year columns. Budgeted expenditures 
may be treated in the same way as applicable. 

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year 
LCAP. For example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 
of the preceding three-year LCAP will be from the prior year. 

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget 
that is submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year 
budget to its authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the 
“Goals, Actions, and Services” section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not 
applicable, charter schools must specify as such. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to 
implement these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s 
budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures 
must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by EC sections 
52061, 52067, and 47606.5.  
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first 
appears in the LCAP. 

234



Page 130 of 137

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses 
to complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school 
district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.  
 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for 
Unduplicated Students 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
copy the “Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students” table and 
enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for 
the current year LCAP. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years within the LCAP. 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds 
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and 
concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496(a)(5).  

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for 
unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to 
services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in 
quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity.  This description must address 
how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more unduplicated student group(s), and any 
schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the appropriate description, taken 
together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated 
pupils. 
If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided 
on a schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required 
descriptions supporting each action/service as follows.  
For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis: 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter 
schools and county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed 
to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these 
services are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in 
the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of 
the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience or 
educational theory. 

235



Page 131 of 137

For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a 
schoolwide basis: 

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the 
state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% 
enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and 
how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English 
learners, low income students and foster youth, in the state and any local priorities. 

236



Page 132 of 137

State Priorities 
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which: 

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching; 

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair. 

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses: 
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are:  
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts 
b. Mathematics – CCSS for Mathematics 
c. English Language Development (ELD) 
d. Career Technical Education 
e. Health Education Content Standards 
f. History-Social Science 
g. Model School Library Standards 
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards 
i. Next Generation Science Standards 
j. Visual and Performing Arts 
k. World Language; and 

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency. 

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses: 
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site; 
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and  
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs. 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. Statewide assessments; 
B. The Academic Performance Index; 
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy University of California 

(UC) or California State University (CSU) entrance requirements, or programs of study that align with 
state board approved career technical educational standards and framework; 

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT); 

E. The English learner reclassification rate; 
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and 
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness. 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. School attendance rates; 
B. Chronic absenteeism rates; 
C. Middle school dropout rates; 
D. High school dropout rates; and 
E. High school graduation rates; 

237



Page 133 of 137

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
A. Pupil suspension rates; 
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and 
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness. 
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in: 

A. S broad course of study including courses described under EC sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable; 

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and 
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs. 

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under EC sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable.  
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils. 
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:  

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement  
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports; 

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and 

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport. 

Local Priorities address: 
A. Local priority goals; and 
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals. 

238



Page 134 of 137

APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE 
CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS 
For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under EC sections 52060 
and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply: 

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of K-8 students who were absent 10 percent or more of the school days 

excluding students who were: 
(A) enrolled less than 31 days 
(B) enrolled at least 31 days but did not attend at least one day 
(C) flagged as exempt in the district attendance submission. K-8 students are considered to 
be exempt if they: 
 (i) are enrolled in a Non-Public School 
 (ii) receive instruction through a home or hospital instructional setting 
 (iii) are attending a community college full-time. 

(2) The number of students who meet the enrollment requirements. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

 (b) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:  
(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where 

“cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus 
pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4. 

(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(c) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) For a 4-Year Cohort Graduation Rate: 

(A) The number of students in the cohort who earned a regular high school diploma by the 
end of year 4 in the cohort. 

(B) The total number of students in the cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(2) For a Dashboard Alternative Schools Status (DASS) Graduation Rate: 
(A) The number of students who either graduated as grade 11 students or who earned any 

of the following: 
(i) a regular high school diploma 
(ii) a High School Equivalency Certificate 
(iii) an adult education diploma 
(iv)  a Certificate of Completion and was eligible for the California Alternative 

Assessment if under the age of 20. 
(B) The number of students in the DASS graduation cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(d) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(e) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

expelled during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 

239



Page 135 of 137

(3) Divide (1) by (2). 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 
2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 
52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 
Sections 6312 and 6314.  

240



Page 136 of 137

 

APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS 
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis 

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of 
those services result in the desired outcomes? 

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified 
pursuant to EC Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income 
pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired 
outcomes?  

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school 
sites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes? 

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review 
progress toward goals in the annual update? 

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? 
How effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What 
changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result 
of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?  

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual 
expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences? 

 

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement 
1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated 

pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education 
foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth 
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as 
appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting 
implementation of the LCAP?  

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for 
engagement in the development of the LCAP? 

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to 
stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting 
process? How was the information made available? 

4)  What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written 
comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement 
processes? 

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement 
pursuant to EC sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01? 

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 
Section 15495(a)? 

241



Page 137 of 137

7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement 
of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, 
related to the state priorities? 

 

Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services 
1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 

Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access 
(Priority 7)? 

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil 
Achievement (Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled 
Pupils (Priority 9 – COE Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – 
COE Only)?  

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil 
“Engagement”: Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School 
Climate (Priority 6)? 

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities?  
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the 

development of meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level 
advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth 
school level data analysis, etc.)?  

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in EC Section 42238.01 and 
groups as defined in EC Section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils? 

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals 
annually and over the term of the LCAP? 

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to 
develop goals to address each state or local priority? 

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites? 
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in EC Section 52052? 
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant 

to EC Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or 
to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP? 

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?  
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  

Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget? 
 
 
Prepared by the California Department of Education, January 2019 
 

242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

 
School Year:    2019-20     

SPSA Title Page 
 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement 
(SPSA) Template 
 
Instructions and requirements for completing the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template 
Instructions. 

School Name 
Arbuckle Elementary 
School         

County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 

06616146003511         

Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 

May 13, 2019         

Local Board Approval 
Date 

June 20, 2019         

 

Purpose and Description 
 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support 
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
X Schoolwide Program        

 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
This plan includes strategies to meet identified school needs and provide opportunities for all 
students, including each student group, to meet the state standards.  This plan addresses the needs 
of all students in the school, particularly those at risk of not meeting the state standards.  It also 
provides supports that will strengthen the academic program, improve learning and support enriched 
and accelerated curriculum while addressing the needs of all students in the school.  This plan is 
aligned with the Local Control Accountability Plan and is monitored multiple times throughout the 
year.         
 

270



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Data Analysis 
Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis is provided. 
 
Surveys 
This section provides a description of surveys (i.e., Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-year, and a summary 
of results from the survey(s). 
At Arbuckle Elementary School (AES) we administer a student, staff and parent survey each year.  The staff survey was 
the California Healthy Kids survey and the results were as follows: 100% of survey results revealed the learning 
environment is supportive and inviting, promotes academic success for all students, sets high standards for all students, 
and the adults at school ensure a safe and supportive environment.  76% of the staff feel they participate in decision 
making and 96% feel it is an inviting place to work. 100% of the staff feel that objective data is used to make decisions.  
100% of the staff feel that the school is a safe place for students and staff.  92% believe the school gives equal access 
to extracurricular and enrichment activities.  92% believe the staff treats all students fairly.  The parent survey results 
(167 surveys) revealed:  96% believe the school office and administrative staff is responsive and friendly. 94% believe 
(or don't know) that discipline is handled effectively.  86% believe the school environment is respectful and caring.  72% 
believe the playground is well supervised. 73% believe the school facility is safe and secure.  The student survey results 
revealed that 85% of the students feel a sense of belonging at school and 90% feel they are safe while at school.  83% 
report that learning is fun and 92% like school.  96% feel that their teacher cares about them.  78.9% feel students at 
AES are friendly. 72% report that their family helps with homework and 96% believe their family thinks they can do well 
is school.         

 
Classroom Observations 
This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during the school-year and 
a summary of findings. 
Formal classroom observations are completed two times a year for probationary teachers and 1 time a year for tenured 
teachers up for evaluation.  The formal observation includes a pre and post conference and teachers are expected to 
turn in written lesson plans.  Informal classroom walkthroughs are completed on a semi-weekly basis and feedback is 
given through Progress Advisor.   Probationary teachers are also given release time to allow them to observe their 
colleagues' classrooms.         

 
Analysis of Current Instructional Program 
The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 1965 and Essential 
Program Components (EPCs). In conjunction with the needs assessments, these categories may be used to discuss and 
develop critical findings that characterize current instructional practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as 
individual students who are: 
 

• Not meeting performance goals 
• Meeting performance goals 
• Exceeding performance goals 

 
Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on verifiable facts. Avoid vague 
or general descriptions. Each successive school plan should examine the status of these findings and note progress made.  
Special consideration should be given to any practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing 
monitoring of categorical programs. 
 
Standards, Assessment, and Accountability 
 
Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA) 
Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement. The staff, School Site 
Council and the School Board reviews state scores in language arts, and mathematics annually, along with the local 
NWEA MAP district assessments and the ELPAC scores. Teachers meet individually with the principal at the beginning 
of the school year to conduct test chats based on the previous year’s assessment data.  These scores are analyzed as a 
whole and broken down by sub-groups to identify specific areas of focus for specific student groups. Once areas and 
students are identified, action plans go into effect on how to make improvements on the academic achievement. 

 

271



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction (EPC) 
Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction (EPC #7). Unit 
tests and/or chapter test are given at the completion of each unit/chapter in both language arts and math.  Academic 
Conferences are then held with the grade level teams to look at the scores and discuss current and best practices that 
are reflected in the results.  The reading specialist, ELD teachers, and special education teachers are also part of the 
sharing of information about students. Following this analysis, teachers create action plans to meet the needs of 
individual students’ academic achievement. Teachers write their annual Stull goals based on the data. These plans 
contain SMART goals, meaning they are specific, measurable, attainable, results based and time bound. These goals 
are monitored and evaluated on a regular basis. Results are reported to the principal and new action plans are created 
based on the new data. Along with end of unit assessments from the adopted curriculum, other assessments used 
include BPST (Basic Phonics Skill Test) in grades K-2, tri-annual running records on reading assessments, SRI 
(Scholastic Reading Inventory), writing assessments, NWEA MAP tri-annual data, Compass Learning data, and Lexia 
data. 

 
Staffing and Professional Development 
 
Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA) 
This was part of NCLB and is no longer a requirement. 

 
Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to instructional materials training 
on SBE-adopted instructional materials) (EPC) 
Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to AB 466 training on SBE-
adopted instructional materials) (EPC # 5).     All teaching staff are fully credentialed. All fourth and fifth grade teachers 
participated in a STEM training through UC Davis (2014, 2015). All staff received a training with the publisher of the 
newly adopted mathematics program, Go Math (2014, 2015). All teachers participated in a full day training with the 
publisher of the newly adopted ELA curriculum, Wonders (2016). The instructional coaches are receiving continuous 
training to support the staff.  The staff received on-site training for Illuminate in 2014, 2015, and 2017.  In April 2016, the 
administrator along with the instructional coach attended a training on building teacher capacities.  In 2017, the district 
administration team attended a training on building coherence within the district. The ELD coordinator, literacy coach, 
instructional coach, and principal attended multiple training at Sacramento County Office of Education regarding ELD 
standards and the ELA/ELD framework.  In 2017, the kindergarten team attended a kindergarten conference with the 
literacy coach and instructional coach. In 2018, the 1st grade teachers attended a 2 day training specifically for K/1 
teachers.  In 2018 the administrator attended the annual Illuminate conference.  In 2018, teachers were certified in Crisis 
Prevention and Intervention (CPI) as well as strategies to deal with mental health, the administrator attended a CABE 
training on the EL Roadmap, two representatives from the site attended a training on English Learner strategies hosted 
by Kate Kinsella and will be providing staff development on this topic to the whole staff. 

 
Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional needs (ESEA) 
Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional needs. Each year 
the staff determines the focus of staff development activities based on the school goals and plans set by the School Site 
Council and School Board. The equivalent of six days a year are designated as Staff Development Days, and are 
student non-attendance days.  Additional instructional minutes allow early release of students on Wednesdays. Weekly, 
each grade level team of teachers meets to collaboratively look at student work and plan instruction. The staff then 
meets to receive training on instructional strategies and standards primarily in the areas of math, languages arts, STEM, 
and ELD (EPC #6 & 8). The ideas for additional staff development arise during academic conferencing. The instructional 
coaches fulfill those needs when they meet with individual grade level teams. Training on the Common Core State 
Standards (CCSS) have been attended by the principal and instructional coaches through Sacramento County Office of 
Education. 

 

272



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g., use of content experts and instructional coaches) (EPC) 
Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g. use of content experts and instructional coaches) (EPC 
#6). Previously, Dr. Marilyn Bates worked with the staff for four years on effective instructional strategies beginning in 
2005. She worked directly with the principal to coach her on supporting the specific needs of the staff. The principal 
provides staff development to teachers on Quality First Instruction utilizing Explicit Direct Instruction. The principal and 
vice principal conduct walk-throughs to reinforce and refine teaching skills. All beginning teachers are assigned a TCIP 
(Tri County Induction Program) support provider for their first two years. The literacy and instructional coaches work 
closely with the teachers providing training, feedback, and modeling lessons. The ELD teachers provide resources as 
needed for English Language Learners. One staff meeting a month is dedicated to staff development in the area of ELD. 
Teachers are eligible to request assistance through the district’s Peer Assistance and Review (PAR) if they are needing 
additional support. Teachers receiving "unsatisfactory" on their evaluations are assigned to PAR and given additional 
support from a PAR coach.  The district has adopted Jim Knight's Impact Cycle for coaching and have begun to 
implement it through the instructional coaches. 

 
Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K–8]) and department (grades nine through twelve) 
(EPC) 
Teacher collaboration by grade level (K-5) (EPC#8). Time is built in for weekly collaboration among grade levels. 
Academic conferencing is held following ELA unit/chapter assessments and following the fall and winter administration of 
NWEA. This conferencing takes place during Wednesday release time. Seven staff members including the principal 
attended the Professional Learning Community training from the DuFours at Sacramento County Office of Education for 
two days in January 2012.  The first grade team along with the principal attended a training offered through the Yolo 
County Office of Education (2016). The first grade teachers attended a 2 day training specifically for K/1 teachers (2018).  
The principal has created a leadership team which is comprised of a teacher representative from each grade level.  The 
representative takes items back to the grade level team to discuss further and collaborate before bringing it back to the 
leadership team. 

 
Teaching and Learning 
 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA) 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards. Staff development for 
breaking down the standards for instructional purposes will be provided on an ongoing basis with an emphasis on the 
new ELA/ELD framework and standards. The newly adopted ELA Wonders curriculum became available during the 
2016-2017 school year.  Teachers were given time to align the curriculum to the standards and develop instructional 
opportunities that are aligned to CCSS.  During the 2018-2019 school year we will look to pilot a science curriculum.  
Supplemental CCSS materials were purchased in math for grades K- 2 (2013/14). In 2017 additional kindergarten 
curriculum was purchased to support the extended kindergarten classrooms. In July 2014, the staff was trained with the 
new math adoption, Go Math.  At this time teachers were given time to become familiar with the alignment of the new 
math curriculum with the CCSS.  In August 2007, staff development was provided for the newly adopted Houghton 
Mifflin Science adoption.  Instructional staff is committed to teaching the grade level content standards to all of the 
students in the grade and to supporting all students in achieving mastery. Teachers post standards based learning 
objectives in the classroom daily. 

 
Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K–8) (EPC) 
Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K-5) (EPC #2). Two and 
one-half hours are allocated for instruction of language arts in grades K-3 each day. Two hours are allocated a day for 
grades four and five in language arts. For math, each grade level allocates 60 minutes in grades first through fifth, not 
including homework. Additional time, or leveled support, is given to students performing below grade level during 
workshop time and before and after school programs. 

 
Lesson pacing schedule (K–8) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention courses (EPC) 
Lesson pacing schedule (K-5) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention courses (EPC #3). 
Each year, grade level teams develop a pacing schedule for language arts and mathematics. This schedule is turned 
into the principal. Teachers adhere to the schedule during the school year. Pacing is based on teaching all standards 
prior to the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP). Additional time for individualized 
support is given to students performing below grade level during workshop time, and before or after school. 

 

273



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA) 
Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups. Standards-based instructional 
materials are available to all students. Additional resources for particular groups include, Wonders Designated ELD 
Program and Rosetta Stone for English Language Learners. Compass Learning is available for all students to receive 
leveled instruction based on student NWEA MAP scores. Otter Creek Rocket Math for math facts is used in grades 1-5. 
During workshop, instruction is differentiated to meet the needs of all students. Read Naturally is another research-
based resource used to build reading fluency. Lexia is an intervention support for students in the area of language arts. 
FASTT Math is utilized to build fluency with math facts. 

 
Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials, and for high school 
students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC) 
Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials (EPC #1). All 
curriculums in language arts, mathematics, science and social studies are state approved. Intervention materials for 
each adoption were purchased when available. The language arts adoption included Program 2 for English Learners. 

 
Opportunity and Equal Educational Access 
 
Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards (ESEA) 
Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards (EPC #1). 
Adaptations of curriculum, instruction and/or assessment will be made for underperforming students in the form of 
modifications or accommodations based upon the student's needs. Students not making adequate yearly progress 
based on their CELDT levels, receive ELD instruction four times per week for 40 minutes. English learners making yearly 
language progress are supported in the core curriculum through the use of EL support materials within the adopted 
program. Students identified as under-performing can also receive support in the following ways: individual or small 
group instruction from the classroom teacher, literacy group with the Reading Specialist, and/or flexible groupings at 
student's developmental levels during workshop. 

 
Evidence-based educational practices to raise student achievement 
Research-based educational practices to raise student achievement at this school (EPC #1). Direct instruction is used as 
a primary strategy for instruction. Active participation is a practice used by all teachers to engage students during 
academic time. Time on task and teaching to the content standards is maximized to ensure learning. Integrating the use 
of technology as a tool for the teacher is a part of best practices. Building background knowledge, vocabulary, and 
academic language is another major focus of the school based on the gains found in research. Students setting their 
own goals with the support of the teacher and monitoring those goals on a regular basis are an additional practice in 
place which research again shows is effective.  Teachers have set Wildly Important Goals (WIG) and have identified 
lead and lag measures to discuss with the accountability on a weekly basis. 

 
Parental Engagement 
 
Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students (ESEA) 
Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students. The school district 
provides the After School Education and Safety (ASES) program on a daily basis for 90 students in grades 2-5. Parents 
are highly encouraged to participate in their child’s education through the attendance of Back-to-School Night, family 
nights, parent-teacher conferences, and Open House. Additional parent trainings are offered throughout the year. 
Parents are also a vital component of our Student Success Team (SST) meetings. During an SST meeting, a student’s 
progress is reviewed and an intervention plan is facilitated to best support the student. Possible resource supports 
include: access to mental health services, including Primary Intervention Program (PIP), and Second Step. The Family 
Action Center located on campus also serves as a resource for after school care, homework help, tutoring, adult 
education classes, the facilitation of Medi-cal applications, and a link to additional resources a family may need. The 
District Attendance Review Team (DART) made up of site administrators, meets with parents and students with 
attendance issues. Parents sign a contract stating their child will be at school daily. Failing to do so results in a referral to 
the county probation department. In 2016, the Parent Institute for Quality Education (PIQE) was offered to parents in 
English and Spanish. In 2018 PIQE will be offered at PHS but all parents are encouraged to attend. 

 

274



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and students in secondary 
schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs (5 California Code of Regulations 3932) 
Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, in the planning, 
implementation, and evaluation of consolidated application programs (5 CCR 3932). The School Site Council meets on a 
monthly -basis to monitor the consolidated application programs. The council is made up of parents and staff members. 
During the 2017-2018 school year, a Categorical Program Monitoring (CPM) took place and there were no findings of 
non-compliance under the programs overseen by the School Site Council. The English Language Advisory Committee 
(ELAC) meets at least twice a year. This committee is made up of parents of English Language Learners and staff. The 
District English Language Advisory Committee (DELAC) meets a minimum of two times per year. 

 
Funding 
 
Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards (ESEA) 
Services provided by categorical funds that enable under-performing students to meet standards (EPC #9). A minimum 
of 10% of Title I funds are allocated for staff development. Instructional coaches train and coach teachers in reading and 
writing instructional strategies. An ELD teacher provides instruction to beginning language learners and also provides 
training for teachers. A reading specialist instructs students not meeting grade level standards in reading. Before and 
after school interventions are taught by classroom teachers to support under-performing students. The library clerk is 
hired part time to keep the library in working order.  She also opens the library before school to allow students to take 
Reading Counts quizzes and check out books as needed. 

 
Fiscal support (EPC) 
Supplemental and concentrated funds are prioritized and aligned to support the EPCs and the Single Plan for Student 
Achievement. 

 

Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this 
SPSA/Annual Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Stakeholder input is a large part of our planning process for the SPSA.  The plan is reviewed with 
the School Site Council (SSC) in November and March.   The plan is also reviewed at our English 
Learner Advisory Committee Meetings (ELAC) in December and February.   At SSC and ELAC we 
monitor the progress of the plan as well as provide input for the following years plan.  At least twice 
per year the school staff meets to discuss LCAP input and provides suggestions or ideas for the next 
years plan.  A draft of the plan is brought to SSC in April where the council can make changes.  A 
final draft is then brought to SSC in May for final approval.  After final approval from SSC the plan is 
taken to the school board for approval in June.         
 
Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs 
assessment, as applicable.  
No resource inequities were identified as part of the needs assessment.         

 

275



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 

 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 

Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

American Indian     % % %           

African American     1.6% 1.1% 0.49% 10        7 3 

Asian     1.0% 0.8% 0.65% 6        5 4 

Filipino     % % 0.16%          1 

Hispanic/Latino     76.6% 77.2% 77.74% 480        483 475 

Pacific Islander     0.2% 0.2% % 1        1  

White     19.0% 18.7% 18.00% 119        117 110 

Multiple/No Response     1.6% % 1.15% 10         7 

 Total Enrollment 627 626 611 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 

 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Number of Students 
Grade 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

Kindergarten        103 117 112 

Grade 1        88 86 98 

Grade 2        108 96 88 

Grade3        99 107 97 

Grade 4        118 100 114 

Grade 5        111 120 102 

Total Enrollment        627 626 611 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. We have roughly 100 students per grade level.        

2. Hispanic and white students makup the majority of students enrolled.        

 

276



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

English Learners        334 338 334 53.3% 54.0% 54.7% 

Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        50 46 46 8.0% 7.3% 7.5% 

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        37 39 47 11.6% 11.7% 13.9% 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Over 50% of our student population are English Learners (EL's).        

2. We increased the number of students reclassified by 2% from the previous two years.        

 

277



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 

 
Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores % of Students Tested Grade 

Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 3        96 107 89 94 105 87 94 105 87 97.9 98.1 97.8 

Grade 4        119 104 114 117 104 113 117 104 113 98.3 100 99.1 

Grade 5        107 124 106 107 122 101 107 122 101 100 98.4 95.3 

All Grades        322 335 309 318 331 301 318 331 301 98.8 98.8 97.4 
 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard 
Met 

% Standard 
Nearly Met 

% Standard 
Not Met Grade 

Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 3        2414.
0 

2399.
4 

2446.
2 

16 18.10 31.03 27 15.24 27.59 24 31.43 27.59 33 35.24 13.79 

Grade 4        2442.
2 

2423.
3 

2447.
0 

16 12.50 15.93 20 14.42 23.01 24 25.00 23.89 40 48.08 37.17 

Grade 5        2454.
7 

2455.
2 

2478.
0 

5 11.48 12.87 24 22.13 24.75 24 27.05 27.72 47 39.34 34.65 

All Grades        N/A N/A N/A 12 13.90 19.27 23 17.52 24.92 24 27.79 26.25 40 40.79 29.57 
 

Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 3        14 18.10 27.59 47 32.38 52.87 39 49.52 19.54 

Grade 4        16 12.50 15.93 44 44.23 50.44 40 43.27 33.63 

Grade 5        13 14.75 17.82 33 40.98 45.54 54 44.26 36.63 

All Grades        14 15.11 19.93 41 39.27 49.50 45 45.62 30.56 
 

Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 3        12 22.86 36.78 60 40.95 42.53 29 36.19 20.69 

Grade 4        13 11.54 15.93 46 43.27 46.02 41 45.19 38.05 

Grade 5        11 19.67 21.78 45 43.44 46.53 44 36.89 31.68 

All Grades        12 18.13 23.92 50 42.60 45.18 38 39.27 30.90 
 

278



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 3        10 9.52 21.84 73 69.52 64.37 17 20.95 13.79 

Grade 4        15 6.73 12.39 68 66.35 70.80 18 26.92 16.81 

Grade 5        9 9.84 5.94 64 55.74 66.34 27 34.43 27.72 

All Grades        11 8.76 12.96 68 63.44 67.44 21 27.79 19.60 
 

Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 3        22 20.00 27.59 53 37.14 55.17 24 42.86 17.24 

Grade 4        24 12.50 21.24 49 49.04 51.33 27 38.46 27.43 

Grade 5        14 15.57 17.82 59 44.26 48.51 27 40.16 33.66 

All Grades        20 16.01 21.93 53 43.50 51.50 26 40.48 26.58 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. We saw a significant increase of students Meeting/Exceeding Standards from 16-17 to 17-18 with an increase of 

13%.        
2. In 16-17 reading was the lowest of the 4 domains with 45% of the students performing below standard.  In 17-18 

the number of students Below Standard in reading decreased to 30% for grades 3-5.        
3. We saw an increase in Standard Exceeded and Standard Met in Grades 3-5 from 16-17 to 17-18.  We also saw a 

significant decline in students scoring Standard Not met from 16-17 to 17-18.        
 

279



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 

 

Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores % of Students Tested Grade 

Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 3        96 107 89 95 105 87 95 105 87 99 98.1 97.8 

Grade 4        119 104 114 117 104 114 117 104 114 98.3 100 100 

Grade 5        107 124 106 107 124 104 107 124 104 100 100 98.1 

All Grades        322 335 309 319 333 305 319 333 305 99.1 99.4 98.7 
 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard 
Met 

% Standard 
Nearly Met 

% Standard 
Not Met Grade 

Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 3        2434.
5 

2416.
4 

2452.
8 

19 14.29 22.99 31 27.62 39.08 32 27.62 22.99 19 30.48 14.94 

Grade 4        2473.
3 

2441.
3 

2456.
4 

15 3.85 8.77 26 24.04 25.44 41 40.38 35.09 18 31.73 30.70 

Grade 5        2474.
7 

2482.
2 

2490.
0 

10 9.68 14.42 14 21.77 16.35 36 33.87 40.38 40 34.68 28.85 

All Grades        N/A N/A N/A 14 9.31 14.75 24 24.32 26.23 36 33.93 33.44 26 32.43 25.57 
 

Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 3        33 31.43 47.13 39 29.52 34.48 28 39.05 18.39 

Grade 4        30 14.42 18.42 38 39.42 35.96 32 46.15 45.61 

Grade 5        18 17.74 19.23 33 41.94 38.46 50 40.32 42.31 
All Grades        
 
 

27 21.02 26.89 37 37.24 36.39 37 41.74 36.72 
 

Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 3        15 20.00 29.89 56 47.62 50.57 29 32.38 19.54 

Grade 4        18 6.73 15.79 56 50.00 50.00 26 43.27 34.21 

Grade 5        9 8.87 14.42 36 50.00 45.19 54 41.13 40.38 

All Grades        14 11.71 19.34 49 49.25 48.52 37 39.04 32.13 
 

280



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 3        31 13.33 32.18 54 50.48 52.87 16 36.19 14.94 

Grade 4        20 6.73 15.79 58 48.08 42.11 22 45.19 42.11 

Grade 5        6 8.87 12.50 49 45.97 49.04 46 45.16 38.46 

All Grades        18 9.61 19.34 54 48.05 47.54 28 42.34 33.11 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. We increased the percent of students proficient by 7.4% from 33.6% in 16-17 to 41% in 17-18.        

2. We decreased the percent of students Below Standard in each of the 3 domains.  Concepts and Procedures went 
from 41.7% in 16-17 to 36.72% in 17-18.  Problem Solving and Modeling Data Analysis went from 39.04% in 16-17 
to 32.13% in 17-18.  Communicating Reasoning went from 42.34% in 16-17 to 33.11% in 17-18.  The domain with 
the highest percentage of students Below Standard is Concepts and Procedures which is a shift from 16-17 when 
we had the largest percentage Below Standard in Communicating Reasoning.        

3. Problem Solving and Modeling/Data Analysis has the most students Above Standard (19.34%) and 48.52% At of 
Near Standard with a total of 67.86% Above or At Standard.  Concepts and Procedures has 63.28% At or Above 
Standard and Communicating Reasoning has 66.88% At or Above Standard.        

 

281



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

ELPAC Results 
 

2017-18 Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 

Grade 
Level Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 

Students Tested 
Grade K        1406.7 1416.5 1383.8 80 

Grade 1        1452.9 1454.7 1450.5 53 

Grade 2        1491.2 1486.4 1495.6 54 

Grade 3        1476.8 1471.7 1481.6 41 

Grade 4        1497.0 1490.8 1502.7 49 

Grade 5        1504.4 1503.3 1505.1 42 

All Grades           319 
 

Overall Language 
Number and Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Grade 
Level # % # % # % # % 

Total Number of 
Students 

Grade K        * * 30 37.50 28 35.00 14 17.50 80 

Grade 1        18 33.96 26 49.06 * * * * 53 

Grade 2        29 53.70 17 31.48 * * * * 54 

Grade 3          20 48.78 15 36.59 * * 41 

Grade 4        * * 28 57.14 * * * * 49 

Grade 5        16 38.10 14 33.33 * * * * 42 

All Grades        76 23.82 135 42.32 70 21.94 38 11.91 319 
 

Oral Language 
Number and Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Grade 
Level # % # % # % # % 

Total Number of 
Students 

Grade K        12 15.00 37 46.25 20 25.00 11 13.75 80 

Grade 1        26 49.06 18 33.96 * * * * 53 

Grade 2        35 64.81 13 24.07 * * * * 54 

Grade 3        * * 22 53.66 * * * * 41 

Grade 4        20 40.82 17 34.69 * * * * 49 

Grade 5        26 61.90 * * * * * * 42 

All Grades        125 39.18 115 36.05 52 16.30 27 8.46 319 
 

282



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Written Language 
Number and Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Grade 
Level # % # % # % # % 

Total Number of 
Students 

Grade K        12 15.00 * * 38 47.50 22 27.50 80 

Grade 1        14 26.42 20 37.74 * * * * 53 

Grade 2        23 42.59 21 38.89 * * * * 54 

Grade 3          * * 19 46.34 12 29.27 41 

Grade 4        * * 21 42.86 16 32.65 * * 49 

Grade 5        * * 18 42.86 * * * * 42 

All Grades        58 18.18 98 30.72 97 30.41 66 20.69 319 
 

Listening Domain 
Number and Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Grade 
Level Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number of 

Students 
Grade K        33 41.25 40 50.00 * * 80 

Grade 1        41 77.36 * * * * 53 

Grade 2        38 70.37 15 27.78 * * 54 

Grade 3        * * 26 63.41 * * 41 

Grade 4        16 32.65 24 48.98 * * 49 

Grade 5        19 45.24 16 38.10 * * 42 

All Grades        156 48.90 130 40.75 33 10.34 319 
 

Speaking Domain 
Number and Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Grade 
Level Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number of 

Students 
Grade K        11 13.75 46 57.50 23 28.75 80 

Grade 1        14 26.42 34 64.15 * * 53 

Grade 2        36 66.67 16 29.63 * * 54 

Grade 3        14 34.15 23 56.10 * * 41 

Grade 4        30 61.22 15 30.61 * * 49 

Grade 5        31 73.81 * * * * 42 

All Grades        136 42.63 142 44.51 41 12.85 319 
 

283



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Reading Domain 
Number and Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Grade 
Level Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number of 

Students 
Grade K        * * 64 80.00 * * 80 

Grade 1        20 37.74 23 43.40 * * 53 

Grade 2        31 57.41 18 33.33 * * 54 

Grade 3          23 56.10 18 43.90 41 

Grade 4        * * 34 69.39 13 26.53 49 

Grade 5        * * 26 61.90 * * 42 

All Grades        66 20.69 188 58.93 65 20.38 319 
 

Writing Domain 
Number and Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Grade 
Level Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number of 

Students 
Grade K        25 31.25 31 38.75 24 30.00 80 

Grade 1        11 20.75 37 69.81 * * 53 

Grade 2        16 29.63 37 68.52 * * 54 

Grade 3        * * 28 68.29 * * 41 

Grade 4        * * 34 69.39 * * 49 

Grade 5        14 33.33 22 52.38 * * 42 

All Grades        79 24.76 189 59.25 51 15.99 319 
 

 
 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. In 2017, 37.5% of the Kindergarten students performed at the Moderately and Well Developed level.  83% of the 1st 

grade students, 85% of 2nd grade students, 48% of 3rd grade students, 57% of 4th grade students at 71% of 5th 
grade students performed Moderately or Well Developed.        

2. The Reading Domain has the lowest percentage of students performing at the Well Developed level with 20.69%.        

3. The Listening Domain has the highest percentage of students performing at the Well Developed level with 89.9%.        

 

284



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 

2017-18 Student Population 

Total 
Enrollment 

611        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

74.8%        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 

English  
Learners 

54.7%        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 

Foster 
Youth 

1.0%        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 

 
2017-18 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 

Student Group Total Percentage 

English Learners        334 54.7% 

Foster Youth        6 1.0% 

Homeless        28 4.6% 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        457 74.8% 

Students with Disabilities        48 7.9% 
 

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 

Student Group Total Percentage 

African American        3 0.5% 

Asian        4 0.7% 

Filipino        1 0.2% 

Hispanic        475 77.7% 

Two or More Races        11 1.8% 

White        110 18.0% 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Over half of the students enrolled at Arbuckle Elementary School are English Learners.        

2. Nearly 3/4 of the students are socioeconomically disadvantaged.        

3. White students are the next largest student group with 18%.        

 

285



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Overall Performance 
 

2018 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 

Academic Performance 

 
English Language Arts 

 
Yellow        

 
Mathematics 

 
Green        

 
English Learner Progress 

 
No Performance Color        

Academic Engagement 

 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Orange        

Conditions & Climate 

 
Suspension Rate 

 
Orange        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Chronic Absenteeism and Suspension Rate are areas that need direct attention based on the orange color rating.        

2. Gains in mathematics brought our color rating to green.        

3. Although a significant increase (13%) in the percentage of students proficient or advanced from 16-17 to 17-18 in 
ELA we earned a yellow rating.        

 

286



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 

Red        

0        
Orange        

0        
Yellow        

3        
Green        

1        
Blue        

0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Yellow         

12.7 points below standard         

Increased 28.6 points         

291 students        

English Learners 

 
Yellow         

23.7 points below standard         

Increased 33.6 points         

191 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

3 students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

52.8 points below standard         

12 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

21.9 points below standard         

Increased 33.7 points         

230 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Color         

95.3 points below standard         

Increased 48.1 points         

30 students        

 

287



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

2 students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

2 students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

17.7 points below standard         

Increased 34.2 points         

228 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

7 students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

 
Green         

15.1 points above standard         

Increased 8.9 points         

52 students        

 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

65.7 points below standard         

Increased 11.6 points         

115 students        

Reclassified English Learners 

39.8 points above standard         

Increased 26.4 points         

76 students        

English Only 

8.5 points above standard         

Increased 21.5 points         

100 students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall performance color rating for all students was yellow.  All subgroups were yellow except for the white group 

which was green.        
2. Reclassified English Learners were 39.8 points above standard which was an increase of 26.4 points from 16-17.  

Current English Learners were 11.6 points below standard which was an increase in 11.6 points from 16-17. The 
English Only subgroup was 8.5 points above standard which was an increase of 21.5 points from 16-17.        

 

288



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
Mathematics 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 

Red        

0        
Orange        

0        
Yellow        

1        
Green        

3        
Blue        

0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Green         

16.6 points below standard         

Increased 
 

 19.3 points         
291 students        

English Learners 

 
Yellow         

26.3 points below standard         

Increased 
 

 21.4 points         
191 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

3 students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

41.1 points below standard         

12 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Green         

24.5 points below standard         

Increased 
 

 23.3 points         
230 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Color         

95.8 points below standard         

Increased 
 

 19.4 points         
30 students        

 

289



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

2018 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

2 students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

2 students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Green         

22.2 points below standard         

Increased 
 

 20.7 points         
228 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

7 students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

 
Green         

5.9 points above standard         

Increased 5.5 points         

52 students        

 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

57.8 points below standard         

Maintained 2 points         

115 students        

Reclassified English Learners 

21.5 points above standard         

Increased 
 

 26 points         
76 students        

English Only 

2 points above standard         

Increased 
 

 16 points         
100 students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Overall performance color rating for all students was green.  All subgroups were green except for the English Learner 

subgroup which was yellow.        
2. English Learners need additional supports in place to be successful in mathematics.        

3. Reclassified students are maintaining Above Standard status.        

 

290



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 

 
This section provides a view of the percent of students performing at each level on the new English Language Proficiency 
Assessments for California (ELPAC) assessment.  With the transition ELPAC, the 2018 Dashboard is unable to report a 
performance level (color) for this measure. 

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Proficiency Assessments for California Results 

Number of  
Students 

 
319        

Level 4 
Well 

Developed 
23.8%        

Level 3 
Moderately 
Developed 

42.3%        

Level 2 
Somewhat 
Developed 

21.9%        

Level 1 
Beginning 

Stage 
11.9%        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Nearly 1/3 of our English Learners are performing in the Somewhat Developed and Beginning Stage on ELPAC.  

Additional supports are needed for these students.        
2. Designated and integrated ELD strategies are proving to be effective with nearly 2/3 of the English Learners 

performing in the Well Developed and Moderately Developed stages.        
 

291



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
3        

Yellow        
1        

Green        
1        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Orange         

6.7% chronically absent         

Increased 1.2%         

641 students        

English Learners 

 
Green         

5.1% chronically absent         

Declined 0.5%         

351 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

15.4% chronically absent         

13 students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

14.6% chronically absent         

Declined 11.7%         

41 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Orange         

7.9% chronically absent         

Increased 0.8%         

495 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Orange         

11.5% chronically absent         

Increased 3.5%         

52 students        

 

292



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

2018 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

3 students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

0 students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

5 students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

5% chronically absent         

Increased 0.5%         

499 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

27.3% chronically absent         

Increased 8.5%         

11 students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

White     

 
Orange         

11.6% chronically absent         

Increased 5.7%         

121 students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The overall performance color for chronic absenteeism is orange.  All subgroups are orange except Hispanic which 

is yellow and English Learners which are green.        
2. Continued support is needed to promote the importance of attendance.        

 

293



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 

Red        

0        
Orange        

4        
Yellow        

1        
Green        

0        
Blue        

0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Orange         

2.1% suspended at least once         

Increased 1.1%         
655 students        

English Learners 

 
Orange         

1.7% suspended at least once         

Increased 1.1%         
356 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

20% suspended at least once         

15 students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

6.5% suspended at least once         

Increased 1.3%         
46 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Orange         

2.4% suspended at least once         

Increased 1.1%         
508 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Yellow         

5.7% suspended at least once         

Declined -0.3%         
53 students        

 

294



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          4 students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          5 students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1 students        

Hispanic 

 
Orange         

1.6% suspended at least 
once         

Increased 1.2%         
509 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

9.1% suspended at least 
once         

Increased 9.1%         
11 students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1 students        

White     

 
Orange         

3.2% suspended at least 
once         

Increased 1.5%         
124 students        

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 

2016     
1.5% suspended at least once         

2017     
1.1% suspended at least once         

2018     
2.1% suspended at least once         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The overall performance indicator color for suspension rate is orange. All subgroups are orange except students with 

disabilities which is yellow.        
2. There were 655 students accounted during this school year.  Our rate went from 1.1% in 2017 to 2.1% which was a 

total of 14 students suspended in 2018.        
 

295



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Pierce Joint Unified School District students will graduate high school college and career ready.         

 

Goal 1 
Arbuckle Elementary Students will meet or exceed standards on the 2019/2020 California 
Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP).  Seventy percent of Arbuckle 
Elementary School Students will be proficient on SRI in grades 2-5 by the end of the year.          

 
Identified Need 
56% of our students are scoring below standard on CAASPP.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Academic Indicator (Grades 3-
5 English Language Arts)        

 44% of the students were 
proficient or advanced on 
CAASPP in 2018 

 49% of students will be 
proficient or advanced on 
CAASPP in 2019 

a.)  Overall distance from 
standard for all students        

 All students were 12.7 points 
below standard 

 Decrease the points below 
standard by 5 points from 12 to 
7 points below 

b.)  Distance from standard for 
English Learners        

 English Learners were 23.7 
points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 7 points from 23.7 
to 16.7 points below 

c.) Distance from standard for 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged        

 Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students were 
21.9 points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 7 points from 21.9 
to 14.9 points below 
 
 

d.) Distance from standard for 
Students with Disabilities        

 Students with Disabilities were 
95.3 points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 10 points from 
95.3 to 85.3 points below 

e.)  Distance from standard for 
Hispanic sub group        

 Hispanic students were 17.7 
points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 7 from 17.7 points 
to 10.7 points below 

f.)  Distance from standard for 
White subgroup        

 White students were 15.1 
points below  standard 

 Increase points above standard 
by 5 to 20.1 points above 
 
 

Scholastic Reading         48% of studets are proficient or 
advanced on SRI 

 Increase percentage of 
students proficient or advanced 

296



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

on SRI by 7 percentage points 
from 48% to 55%. 

Projected RIT proficiency         49% of students were 
projected to score a level 3 or 4 
on CAASPP as of March 2019 

 Increase projected proficiency 
from 49% to 51% 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Model classroom lessons, coach teachers as they teach lessons, provide staff development to 
teachers        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,000         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 
227,828         NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income 

and Neglected 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students not meeting grade level standards        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Small group reading intervention for struggling readers 4 days per week for 30 minutes        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
101,759         NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income 

and Neglected 
500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

297



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Students will receive the recommended usage on Lexia in relation to the skill level.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
11,900         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students not meeting grade level standards        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Students will be placed in before or after school intervention and have access to Compass 
Learning        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
18,144         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 
500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 
15,356         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Recognize students with ribbons, books and trophies for reading        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 

298



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,500         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase additional materials needed for full implementation of programs        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,000         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 

Strategy/Activity 7 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students enrolled in After School Program        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide assistance with homework and offer curriculum enrichment activities for students enrolled 
in the After School Program (ASES).        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
117,000         After School and Education Safety (ASES) 

Strategy/Activity 8 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Teachers will receive training on Explicit Direct Instruction strategies with an EL emphasis        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 

299



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
3,500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 9 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Students in grades 1-5 will do SRI assessments every 6 weeks and take Reading Counts Quizzes        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 10 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Teachers will insist on students setting goals for Reading Counts and insisting on reaching their 
reading challenge.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,000         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 11 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Online teacher resources and videos for teachers to use in the classroom to supplement 
instruction. Online student resources for research projects.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 

300



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,130         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 12 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide parent trainings on reading instruction and reading programs, and/or Common Core State 
Standards        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 13 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase computer software for library book check-out system allowing students access to reading 
books        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
3,000         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 
20,047         NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income 

and Neglected 

Strategy/Activity 14 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 

301



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School library and computer lab will be open one day a week for 2 hours in the summer for 
students to check-out books and take Reading Counts Quizzes. This will be a 6 week program. 
Students will receive a pool pass for participating and will be recognized at an assembly at the 
beginning of the year.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 15 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase copier paper for instructional materials.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
8,000         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 16 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Available for all students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue transportation for late bus route to extend school day for RtI        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
10,377         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 17 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 

302



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase additional books to increase library collections        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,000         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 

Strategy/Activity 18 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Open library during the winter vacation so students can take reading counts quizzes.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
We implemented each of the actions in goal 1.  We saw a 13% increase in students proficient on 
CAASPP which is progress toward our goals.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences between intended implementation and the budgeted expenditures.        
 

303



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
Distance from level 3 will be monitored for various sub groups to determine future areas of focus or 
need.  We will continue with previous actions as we are seeing positive results.        

 

304



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Pierce Joint Unified School District students will graduate high school college and career ready.         

 

Goal 2 
Arbuckle Elementary School Students will meet or exceed standards on the 2019/2020 California 
Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) in mathematics. Seventy percent of 
students in K-2 will be at grade level proficiency on the NWEA Maps test. We will have a projected 
proficiency of 70% on the NWEA MAPS assessment.          

 
Identified Need 
59% of the students are not meeting grade level standard.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Academic Indicator (Grades 3-
8): Math        

 44% of the students were 
proficient or advanced on 
CAASPP in 2018 

 49% of the students will be 
proficient or advanced on 
CAASPP in 2019 

a.)  Distance from standard for 
all students        

 All students were 16.6 points 
below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 5 from 16.6 to 11.6 
points below standard 

b.)  Distance from standard for 
English Learners        

 English Learners were 26.3 
points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 5 tfrom 26.3 to 
21.3 points below standard 

c.)  distance from standard for 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged        

 Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students were 
24.5 points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 5 from 24.5 to to 
19.5 points below standard 

d.)  Distance from standard for 
Students with Disabilities        

 Students with Disabilities were 
95.8 poinits below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 10 points from 
95.8 to to 85.8 points below 
standard 

e.)  Distance from standard for 
Hispanic sub group        

 Hispanic students were 17.7 
points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 5 from 17.7 to 12.7 
points below standard 

f.)   Distance from standard for 
White sub group        

 White students were 15.1  
points above standard 

 Increase points above standard 
by 5 to 20.1 above standard 

Academic Indicator:  NWEA 
Projected Proficiency        

 43% of students were 
projected to score a level 3 or 4 
on CAASPP as of March 2019 

 Increase projected proficiency 
from 43% to 45% 

 

305



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide FASTT Math computer program for math facts for all students in grades 1-5. Program 
usage will be monitored by teacher and principal.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Students will be placed in before, during or after school intervention and have access to Compass 
Learning.  Compass usage for interventions will be monitored by teacher and principal.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
18,144         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 
1500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase additional math resource materials as needed        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 

306



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,000         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Recognize students for passage of math facts        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
700         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide training on math content and math programs        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Instructional focus on the 8 mathematical practices during staff development        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 

307



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 7 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students in grades 3-5        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Implement math performance tasks and analyze results at least 6x year        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 8 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students not meeting standards        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Math intervention classes will be focused on number sense and will be hands on in nature.  
Lessons will include math games to build number sense and encourage students to enjoy math.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 

308



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
FASTT Math computer program was not utilized with fidelity across the grade levels.  We focused 
on Mathematical Mindset as opposed to the 8 Mathematical Practices.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
We had budgeted $600 for training on math content but we actually spent about $6,000 to send 
teachers to training.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We will continue focusing on the Mathematical Mindset and integrating the 8 Mathematical 
Practices in to staff development.  We will be working as a staff to determine best way to hold 
students accountable with math facts.        

 

309



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Pierce Joint Unified School District students will graduate high school college and career ready.         

 

Goal 3 
Students who have been enrolled at Arbcukle Elementary since kindergarten will be be reclassified 
by 5th grade.          

 
Identified Need 
Reading continues to have the lowest percentage of students at the Well Developled level and 
therefore is the main reasons students are not reclassified.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Number of Students 
Reclassified in Grades 3-5        

 In 2018 we reclassified 33 
students, which was 9% of the 
EL's 

 Increase the percentage of 
students being reclassified 
from 9% to 14% 

Number of Long Term EL's         9 students are Long Term EL 
in the current 5th grade class 

 Decrease this number by 2 
students 

Number of 5th Grade Students 
Not Reclassified        

 40% of the students going to 
6th grade are English Learners 

 Decrease this percentage from 
40% to 35% 

Percent of Level 1 and 2 on 
ELPAC for K-5        

 In 2018 we had 21.94% in level 
2 and 11.91% in level 1 

 Decrease percent of student in 
level 1 and 2 from 33.8% to 
28.33% 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Learner Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Teachers will review ELPAC data a minimum of 2 times per year.  They will also analyze classroom 
assessments and district benchmark assessment data to be sure EL students are progressing 
academically.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 

310



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
3,144         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Learner Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Students not progressing one language level per year will recieve ELD instruction from the ELD 
teacher.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
171,139         NCLB: Title III, Limited English Proficiency 

(LEP) Student Program 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students new to the United States        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Rosetta Stone computer software will be utilized for ELL students at levels 1 & 2 who are 
newcomers        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,000         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Learner Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 

311



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

English Learners making language level proficiency goals recieve EL support through designated 
and integrated ELD with the use of the adopted language arts program in the regular classroom.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Learner Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Instructional aide will support Kindergarten students needing ELD services. She will do ELPAC 
testing and clerical work related to the ELPAC test.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
30,379         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 
250         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Attend ELD trainings offered off site        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 7 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        

312



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

 
Strategy/Activity 
ELD training will be provided to ELD staff and classroom teachers a minimum of 1x a month        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
0          

Strategy/Activity 8 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
4th and 5th grade English Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase Kate Kinsella curriculum to be utilized in ELD workshops for 4th and 5th grade students.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2000         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Actions in goal 3 were implemented as planned.  We still have a large percentage of students who 
do not meet the reclassification criteria in 5th grade and reading appears to be a major factor that 
holds students back.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences between actions and implementation.        
 

313



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We will be purchasing a curriculum to use in 4th and 5th grade designated ELD workshop.  This 
action has been added to goal 3.  We will also educate parents on the importance of reading and 
provide strategies they can implement at home.        

 

314



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Pierce Joint Unified School District students will feel a sense of connectedness academically, socially, emotionally, and 
physically in their schools.         

 

Goal 4 
5th graders will score in the Healthy Fitness Zone (HFZ) for Body Composition.          

 
Identified Need 
47% of the 5th grade students are not in the Healthy Fitness Zone for Body Composition.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Physical Fitness Test         53.4% of the 5th graders are 
scoring in the HFZ for Body 
Composition 

 Increase the percentage of 
students in the HFZ for Body 
Composition by 10% from 
53.4% to 63.4%. 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Cardio activities will makeup 70% of the students time in PE.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
500         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        

315



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

 
Strategy/Activity 
Increase playground equipment available to students        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1500         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase apps to enhance curriculum        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
150         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue UC Extension Cal Fresh program and promote healthy eating        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
0          

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        

316



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase supplies and materials needed for new classroom        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,500         Lottery: Unrestricted 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
We implemented all actions as planned. We will continue to monitor the percent of students in the 
HFZ and determine the effectiveness of our actions.  The previous PFT results were significantly 
lower than in previous years.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences in actions and budgeted expenditures.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
The PE classroom will be moved to larger classroom to allow for more movement in the classroom 
when the weather doesn't permit being outside.        

 

317



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Pierce Joint Unified School District students will feel a sense of connectedness academically, socailly, emotionally, and 
physically in their schools.         

 

Goal 5 
Students will feel a sense of connectedness in school environment.          

 
Identified Need 
We were in the orange for chronic absenteeism and suspension rate.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Student Surveys         85% of the students feel they 
belong at school. 

 Increase percentage from 85% 
to 90% 

Chronic Absenteeism         6.7% of our students were 
chronically absent. 

 Decrease the percentage of 
students chronically absent by 
2% from 6.7% to 4.7%. 

Suspension Rates         2.1% suspension rate.  Maintain suspension rate at 2% 
or under. 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Maintain school counselors        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
85,916         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

318



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Implement Bulldog Store for Positive Behavior Intervention System        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2000         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase School Connection Subscription        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
700         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Afterschool Clubs are offered on Monday for students to engage in art, technology, knitting, Legos, 
etc.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
4000         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

319



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Maintain K-3 Class Size Reduction        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
212,235         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Maintain increase facility services at school sites by adding an additional 1.5 hours to one part-time 
classified custodial staff position.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
6,450         District Funded 

Strategy/Activity 7 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide campus supervisor for students waiting for late route bus        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,650         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

320



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 8 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Maintain Buddy Bench for students on the playground        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
100         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 9 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase Suite 360 and ISS curriculum to be used in the classroom 30 mimutes/week        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
4500         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 

Strategy/Activity 10 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue Lunch Bunch with school counselor 1x week        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
0          

321



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 53 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 11 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Meet with students that have chronic absences 1x month and set goals.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
250         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 12 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Bus drivers use tickets to reward positive behavior on the bus.  At monthly awards assembly a 
ticket will be drawn and that student will receive a reward.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
150         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 13 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Train conflict facilitators in the 4th and 5th grade to mediate student to student issues.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
520         Lottery: Unrestricted 

322



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 54 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 14 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Welcome wagon meet 4x year and be trained to welcome new students to the school.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
500.00         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
All actions in the plan were implemented as planned.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences between intended implementation and budget.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We will continue with previous actions.        

 

323



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 55 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Pierce Joint Unified School District students will graduate high school college and career ready.         

 

Goal 6 
Purchase technology equipment that will enhance the educational program.          

 
Identified Need 
New equipment has to be purchased to maintain the rotation of technology equipment.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Replacement Chart         Currently 10 tablets need to be 
upgraded 

 Postponing upgrade until 
technology pilot is completed 

Replacement Chart         10 teacher computers were 
purchased in 18/19 

 4 laptops will be replaced in 
19/20 school year 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Update computers, printers, purchase tablets, interactive boards, ink cartridges and projector bulbs        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
25000         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

 
 

Annual Review 

324



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 56 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

SPSA Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Technology rotation has been maintained for Elmos, mimio boards, and laptops.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
We have budgeted $25,000 for technology purchases but we are holding off on purchasing until 
pilot is complete so the actual expenditure will likely be less.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
No changes made to the goal.        

 

325



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 57 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

Budget Summary 
 
Complete the table below. Schools may include additional information. Adjust the table as needed. The Budget Summary 
is required for schools funded through the ConApp, and/or that receive funds from the LEA for Comprehensive Support and 
Improvement (CSI). 
 
Budget Summary 
 

Description  Amount 

Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  $129,495 

Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI  $0 

Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  $1,141,918.00 

 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed. If 
the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
 
startcollapse 

Federal Programs  Allocation ($) 

 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $ 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the 
table as needed. 
startcollapse 

State or Local Programs  Allocation ($) 

        $0.00 

After School and Education Safety (ASES)        $117,000.00 

District Funded        $6,450.00 

LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration        $441,369.00 

Lottery:  Instructional Materials        $36,756.00 

Lottery: Unrestricted        $19,570.00 

NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected        $349,634.00 

NCLB: Title III, Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Student Program        $171,139.00 

 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $1,141,918.00 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $1,141,918.00 

326



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 58 of 59 Arbuckle Elementary School

School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
6 Classroom Teachers        

1 Other School Staff        

8 Parent or Community Members        

0 Secondary Students        
 
startcollapse 

Name of Members  Role 

Summer Shadley         X Principal        

LuAnne Lambertson         X Classroom Teacher        

Danielle Alvernaz         X Classroom Teacher        

Jennifer Barham         X Classroom Teacher        

Haley Leue         X Classroom Teacher        

Martha Martinez         X Classroom Teacher        

Laura Hansen         X Classroom Teacher        

Erica Pina         X Other School Staff        

Juan Manuel Garcia         X Parent or Community Member        

Adriana Gonzalez         X Parent or Community Member        

Amy Gibbons         X Parent or Community Member        

Jimena Rivas Beltran         X Parent or Community Member        

Renee Manhart         X Parent or Community Member        

Sallie LaGrande         X Parent or Community Member        

Jennifer Wayman         X Parent or Community Member        

Liz Hagle         X Parent or Community Member        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 

327



328



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

 
School Year:    2019-20     

SPSA Title Page 
 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement 
(SPSA) Template 
 
Instructions and requirements for completing the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template 
Instructions. 

School Name 
Grand Island Elementary 
School         

County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 

06616146003537         

Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 

May 15, 2019         

Local Board Approval 
Date 

June 20, 2019         

 

Purpose and Description 
 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support 
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
X Schoolwide Program        

 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
This plan includes strategies to meet identified school needs and provide opportunities for all 
students, including each student group, to meet the state standards. This plan addresses the needs 
of all students in the school, particularly those at risk of not meeting the state standards. It also 
provides supports that will strengthen the academic program, improve learning and support enriched 
and accelerated curriculum while addressing the needs of all students in the school. This 
plan is aligned with the Local Control Accountability Plan and is monitored multiple times throughout 
the year. 
 
         
 

329



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Data Analysis 
Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis is provided. 
 
Surveys 
This section provides a description of surveys (i.e., Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-year, and a summary 
of results from the survey(s). 
At Grand Island Elementary School we administer a student, staff and parent survey each year. The staff survey was the 
California Healthy Kids survey and the results were as follows: 100% of survey results revealed the learning environment 
is supportive and inviting, promotes academic success for all students, sets high standards for all students, and the 
adults at school ensure a safe and supportive environment. 76% of the staff feel they participate in decision making and 
96% feel it is an inviting place to work. 100% of the staff feel that objective data is used to make decisions. 100% of the 
staff feel that the school is a safe place for students and staff. 92% believe the school gives equal access to 
extracurricular and enrichment activities. 92% believe the staff treats all students fairly. The parent survey results (26 
surveys) revealed: 96% believe the school office and administrative staff is responsive and friendly. 96% believe (or 
don't know) that discipline is handled effectively. 96% believe the school environment is respectful and caring. 92% 
believe the playground is well supervised. 88.5% believe the school facility is safe and secure. The student survey 
results revealed that 85% of the students feel a sense of belonging at school and 90% feel they are safe while at school. 
83% report that learning is fun and 92% like school. 96% feel that their teacher cares about them. 78.9% feel students at 
GI are friendly. 72% report that their family helps with homework and 96% believe their family thinks they can do well is 
school.         

 
Classroom Observations 
This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during the school-year and 
a summary of findings. 
Formal classroom observations are completed two times a year for probationary teachers and 1 time a year for tenured 
teachers up for evaluation. The formal observation includes a pre and post conference and teachers are expected to turn 
in written lesson plans. Informal classroom walkthroughs are completed on a semi-weekly basis and feedback is given 
through Progress Advisor. Probationary teachers are also given release time to allow them to observe their colleagues' 
classrooms.         

 
Analysis of Current Instructional Program 
The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 1965 and Essential 
Program Components (EPCs). In conjunction with the needs assessments, these categories may be used to discuss and 
develop critical findings that characterize current instructional practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as 
individual students who are: 
 

• Not meeting performance goals 
• Meeting performance goals 
• Exceeding performance goals 

 
Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on verifiable facts. Avoid vague 
or general descriptions. Each successive school plan should examine the status of these findings and note progress made.  
Special consideration should be given to any practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing 
monitoring of categorical programs. 
 
Standards, Assessment, and Accountability 
 
Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA) 
Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement. The staff, School Site 
Council and the School Board reviews state scores in language arts, and mathematics annually, along with the local 
NWEA MAP district assessments and the ELPAC scores. Teachers meet individually with the principal at the beginning 
of the school year to conduct test chats based on the previous year’s assessment data.  These scores are analyzed as a 
whole and broken down by sub-groups to identify specific areas of focus for specific student groups. Once areas and 
students are identified, action plans go into effect on how to make improvements on the academic achievement. 

 

330



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction (EPC) 
Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction (EPC #7). Unit 
tests and/or chapter test are given at the completion of each unit/chapter in both language arts and math.  Academic 
Conferences are then held with the grade level teams to look at the scores and discuss current and best practices that 
are reflected in the results. ELD teacher and special education teacher are also part of the sharing of information about 
students. Following this analysis, teachers create action plans to meet the needs of individual students’ academic 
achievement. Teachers write their annual Stull goals based on the data. These plans contain SMART goals, meaning 
they are specific, measurable, attainable, results based and time bound. These goals are monitored and evaluated on a 
regular basis. Results are reported to the principal and new action plans are created based on the new data. Along with 
end of unit assessments from the adopted curriculum, other assessments used include BPST (Basic Phonics Skill Test) 
in grades K-2, tri-annual running records on reading assessments, SRI (Scholastic Reading Inventory), writing 
assessments, NWEA MAP tri-annual data, Compass Learning data, and Lexia data. 

 
Staffing and Professional Development 
 
Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA) 
This was part of NCLB and is no longer a requirement. 

 
Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to instructional materials training 
on SBE-adopted instructional materials) (EPC) 
Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to SB477 training on SBE-
adopted instructional materials) (EPC # 5). All teaching staff is fully credentialed.  All fourth and fifth grade teachers 
participated in a STEM training through UC Davis (2014).  All staff collaborate to offer a STEM rotation once a week for 
all students in the school.  All staff received a training with the publisher of the newly adopted on the new math adoption, 
Go Math (2014).  All teachers participated in a full day training with the publisher of the newly adopted ELA curriculum, 
Wonders (2016). The literacy coach is receiving continuous training to support the staff.  The staff received on site 
training for Illuminate in 2014, 2015 and 2017.  In April 2016, the administrator along with the instructional coach 
attended a training on building teacher capacities.  In 2017, the district administration team attended a training on 
building coherence within the district. The ELD coordinator, literacy coach, instructional coach, and principal attended 
multiple trainings at Sacramento County Office of Education regarding ELD standards and the ELA/ELD framework.  In 
2018 the administrator attended the annual Illuminate conference. In 2018, teachers were certified in Crisis Prevention 
and Intervention (CPI) as well as strategies to deal with mental health, the administrator attended a CABE training on the 
EL Roadmap, two representatives from the site attended a training on English Learner strategies hosted by Kate 
Kinsella and will be providing staff development on this topic to the whole staff. 
 
 

 
Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional needs (ESEA) 
Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional needs. Each year 
the staff determines the focus of staff development activities based on the school goals and plans set by the School Site 
Council and School Board. The equivalent of six days a year are designated as Staff Development Days, and are 
student non-attendance days.  Additional instructional minutes allow early release of students on Wednesdays. Weekly, 
each grade level team of teachers meets to collaboratively look at student work and plan instruction. The staff then 
meets to receive training on instructional strategies and standards primarily in the areas of math, languages arts, STEM, 
and ELD (EPC #6 & 8). The ideas for additional staff development arise during academic conferencing. The instructional 
coaches fulfill those needs when they meet with individual grade level teams. Training on the Common Core State 
Standards (CCSS) are being attended by the principal and instructional coaches through Sacramento County Office of 
Education and are offered by the literacy coach during Wednesday release time. 

 

331



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g., use of content experts and instructional coaches) (EPC) 
Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g. use of content experts and instructional coaches) (EPC 
#6). Previously, Dr. Marilyn Bates worked with the staff for four years on effective instructional strategies beginning in 
2005. She worked directly with the principal to coach her on supporting the specific needs of the staff. The principal 
provides staff development to teachers on Quality First Instruction utilizing Explicit Direct Instruction. The principal and 
vice principal conduct walk-throughs to reinforce and refine teaching skills. All beginning teachers are assigned a TCIP 
(Tri County Induction Program) support provider for their first two years. The instructional coaches work closely with the 
teachers providing training, feedback, and modeling lessons. The ELD teacher provides resources as needed for English 
Language Learners. One staff meeting a month is dedicated to staff development in the area of ELD. Teachers are 
eligible to request assistance through the district’s Peer Assistance and Review (PAR) if they are needing additional 
support. Teachers receiving "unsatisfactory" on their evaluations are assigned to PAR and given additional support from 
a PAR coach. The district has adopted Jim Knights Impact Cycle for coaching and have begun to implement it through 
the instructional coaches. 

 
Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K–8]) and department (grades nine through twelve) 
(EPC) 
Teacher collaboration by grade level (K-5) (EPC#8). Time is built in for weekly collaboration among grade levels. 
Academic conferencing is held following ELA unit/chapter assessments and following the fall and winter administration of 
NWEA. This conferencing takes place during Wednesday release time. Seven staff members including the principal 
attended the Professional Learning Community training from the DuFours at Sacramento County Office of Education for 
two days in January 2012.  The first grade team along with the principal attended a training offered through the Yolo 
County Office of Education (2016). The Grand Island teachers join their grade level collaboration meetings at AES when 
appropriate. 

 
Teaching and Learning 
 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA) 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards. Staff development for 
breaking down the standards for instructional purposes will be provided on an ongoing basis with an emphasis on the 
new ELA/ELD framework and standards. The newly adopted ELA Wonders curriculum became available during the 
2016-2017 school year.  Teachers were given time to align the curriculum to the standards and develop instructional 
opportunities that are aligned to CCSS.  During the 2018-2019 school year we will look to pilot a science curriculum.  In 
2017 additional kindergarten curriculum was purchased to support the extended kindergarten classrooms. In July 2014, 
the staff was trained with the new math adoption, Go Math.  At this time teachers were given time to become familiar 
with the alignment of the new math curriculum with the CCSS.  In August 2007, staff development was provided for the 
newly adopted Houghton Mifflin Science adoption.  Instructional staff is committed to teaching the grade level content 
standards to all of the students in the grade and to supporting all students in achieving mastery. Teachers post 
standards based learning objectives in the classroom daily. 

 
Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K–8) (EPC) 
Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K-5) (EPC #2). Two and 
one-half  hours are allocated for instruction of language arts in grades K-3 each day. Two hours are allocated a day for 
grades four and five in language arts. For math, each grade level allocates 60 minutes in grades first through fifth, not 
including homework. Additional time, or leveled support, is given to students performing below grade level during 
workshop time and before and after school programs. 

 
Lesson pacing schedule (K–8) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention courses (EPC) 
Lesson pacing schedule (K-5) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention courses (EPC #8). 
Each year, grade levels develop a pacing schedule for language arts and mathematics. This schedule is turned into the 
principal. Teachers adhere to the schedule during the school year.  Pacing is based on teaching all standards prior to the 
California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP). Additional time or leveled support is given to 
students performing below grade level during workshop time, and before or after school. 

 

332



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA) 
Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups. Standards-based instructional 
materials are available to all students. Additional resources for particular groups include, Wonders Designated ELD 
Program  and Rosetta Stone for English Language Learners. Compass Learning is available for all students to receive 
leveled instruction based on student NWEA MAP scores. Otter Creek Rocket Math for math facts is used in grades 1-5. 
During workshop, instruction is differentiated to meet the needs of all students. Read Naturally is another research-
based resource used to build reading fluency. Lexia is an intervention support for students in the area of language arts. 
FASTT Math is utilized to build fluency with math facts. 

 
Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials, and for high school 
students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC) 
Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials (EPC #1). All 
curriculums in language arts, mathematics, science and social studies are state approved. Intervention materials for 
each adoption were purchased when available. The language arts adoption included Program 2 for English Learners. 

 
Opportunity and Equal Educational Access 
 
Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards (ESEA) 
Services provided by the regular program that enable under performing students to meet standards (EPC #1). 
Adaptations of curriculum, instruction and/or assessment will be made for under performing students in the form of 
modifications or accommodations based upon the student's needs. Students not making adequate yearly progress 
based on their ELPAC levels, receive ELD instruction four times per week for 40 minutes. English learners making yearly 
language progress are supported in the core curriculum through the use of EL support materials within the adopted 
program. Students identified as under performing can also receive support in the following ways: individual or small 
group instruction from the classroom teacher, literacy group with the Reading Specialist, and/or flexible groupings at 
student's developmental levels during workshop. 

 
Evidence-based educational practices to raise student achievement 
Research-based educational practices to raise student achievement at this school (EPC #1). Direct instruction is used as 
a primary strategy for instruction. Active participation is a practice used by all teachers to engage students during 
academic time. Time on task and teaching to the content standards is maximized to ensure learning. Integrating the use 
of technology as a tool for the teacher is a part of best practices. Building background knowledge, vocabulary, and 
academic language is another major focus of  the school based on the gains found in research. Students setting their 
own goals with the support of the teacher and monitoring those goals on a regular basis are an additional practice in 
place which research again shows is effective.  Teachers have set Wildly Important Goals (WIG) and have identified 
lead and lag measures to discuss with the accountability on a weekly basis. 

 
Parental Engagement 
 
Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students (ESEA) 
Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students.  Community 
members, and parent volunteers provide valuable tutoring and enrichment activities which support student learning. The 
school district provides the After School Education and Safety (ASES) program on a daily basis for 40 students grades 
1-6. Homework help is available to students from para-educators. The Parent’s Club, financially supports many activities 
at the school including the sixth grade Shady Creek Science Camp. Parents are highly encouraged to participate in their 
child’s education through the attendance of Back-to School Night, family nights, parent-teacher conferences, and Open 
House. Parents are also a vital component of our Student Success Team (SST) meetings. During an SST meeting, a 
student’s progress is reviewed and an intervention plan is facilitated to best support the student. Possible resource 
supports include: access to mental health services, Primary Intervention Program (PIP), and Healthy Play. The District 
Attendance Review Team (DART) made up of site administrators, meets with parents and students with attendance 
issues. Parents sign a contract stating their child will be at school daily. Failing to do so results in a referral to the county 
probation department.  In 2018 PIQE will be offered at PHS but all parents are encouraged to attend. 

 

333



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and students in secondary 
schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs (5 California Code of Regulations 3932) 
The School Site Council meets on a monthly basis to monitor the consolidated application programs. The council is 
made up of parents and staff members. The English Language Advisory Committee (ELAC) meets at least twice a year.  
This committee is made up of parents of English Language Learners and staff. The District English Language Advisory 
Committee (DELAC) meets a minimum of twice a year. 

 
Funding 
 
Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards (ESEA) 
Services provided by categorical funds that enable under-performing students to meet standards (NCLB) (EPC #9). A 
minimum of 10% of Title I funds are allocated for staff development. Instructional coaches train and coach teachers, 
instructional aides, and parents in reading and writing instructional strategies. An ELD teacher provides instruction to 
beginning language learners. He also provides training for teachers, instructional aides and parents. Before and after 
school intervention programs are taught by classroom teachers to support under-performing students. 

 
Fiscal support (EPC) 
Supplemental and Concentrated funds are prioritized and aligned to support the EPCs and the Single Plan for Student 
Achievement. 

 

Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this 
SPSA/Annual Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Stakeholder input is a large part of our planning process for the SPSA. The plan is reviewed with the 
School Site Council (SSC) in November and March. The plan is also reviewed at our English 
Learner Advisory Committee Meetings (ELAC) in December and February. At SSC and ELAC we 
monitor the progress of the plan as well as provide input for the following years plan. At least twice 
per year the school staff meets to discuss LCAP input and provides suggestions or ideas for the next 
years plan. A draft of the plan is brought to SSC in April where the council can make changes. A 
final draft is then brought to SSC in May for final approval. After final approval from SSC the plan is 
taken to the school board for approval in June.         
 
Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs 
assessment, as applicable.  
No resource inequities were identified as part of the needs assessment.         

 

334



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 

 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 

Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

American Indian     % % 1.82%          1 

African American     % % %           

Asian     8.2% 5.3% 3.64% 4        3 2 

Filipino     % % %           

Hispanic/Latino     83.7% 86.0% 87.27% 41        49 48 

Pacific Islander     % % %           

White     8.2% 8.8% 7.27% 4        5 4 

Multiple/No Response     % % %           

 Total Enrollment 49 57 55 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 

 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Number of Students 
Grade 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

Kindergarten        8 8 13 

Grade 1        4 10 7 

Grade 2        6 4 10 

Grade3        11 8 3 

Grade 4        13 12 8 

Grade 5        7 15 14 

Total Enrollment        49 57 55 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 87% of the students are Hispanic.        

2. Class sizes continue to be small.        

 

335



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

English Learners        42 45 42 85.7% 78.9% 76.4% 

Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        3 6 3 6.1% 10.5% 5.5% 

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        3 6 4 6.5% 14.3% 8.9% 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 76.4% of our student population are English Learners (EL's).        

2. Small cohort sizes make it hard to draw more concrete conclusions.        

 

336



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 

 
Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores % of Students Tested Grade 

Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 3        11 * * 11 * * 11 * * 100   

Grade 4        14 13 * 14 13 * 14 13 * 100 100  

Grade 5        7 14 13 7 14 13 7 14 13 100 100 100 

All Grades        32 36 24 32 36 24 32 36 24 100 100 100 
 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard 
Met 

% Standard 
Nearly Met 

% Standard 
Not Met Grade 

Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 3        2354.
4 

* * 0 * * 18 * * 18 * * 64 * * 

Grade 4        2421.
9 

2426.
7 

* 14 7.69 * 7 23.08 * 29 23.08 * 50 46.15 * 

Grade 5        * 2479.
9 

2419.
2 

* 14.29 0.00 * 28.57 15.38 * 21.43 7.69 * 35.71 76.92 

All Grades        N/A N/A N/A 6 16.67 8.33 16 22.22 8.33 22 19.44 16.67 56 41.67 66.67 
 

Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 3        0 * * 36 * * 64 * * 

Grade 4        14 7.69 * 43 38.46 * 43 53.85 * 

Grade 5        * 14.29 7.69 * 50.00 46.15 * 35.71 46.15 

All Grades        6 16.67 12.50 41 38.89 41.67 53 44.44 45.83 
 

Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 3        0 * * 36 * * 64 * * 

Grade 4        14 7.69 * 36 46.15 * 50 46.15 * 

Grade 5        * 42.86 7.69 * 28.57 30.77 * 28.57 61.54 

All Grades        9 22.22 12.50 41 44.44 33.33 50 33.33 54.17 
 

337



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 3        0 * * 55 * * 45 * * 

Grade 4        14 7.69 * 71 53.85 * 14 38.46 * 

Grade 5        * 7.14 0.00 * 57.14 53.85 * 35.71 46.15 

All Grades        6 8.33 4.17 63 58.33 45.83 31 33.33 50.00 
 

Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 3        9 * * 64 * * 27 * * 

Grade 4        7 15.38 * 43 46.15 * 50 38.46 * 

Grade 5        * 14.29 0.00 * 50.00 23.08 * 35.71 76.92 

All Grades        9 19.44 4.17 50 44.44 37.50 41 36.11 58.33 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The CAASPP results show that two-thirds of students are not meeting grade level proficiency.        

2. Research/Inquiry domain has the largest percentage of student below stadard with 58%.        

3. Writing is the domain with the most students above grade level with 22%.  Students who were Above Standard in 
reading and writing domains are At or Near Standard in listening and reasearch/inquiry domains        

 

338



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 

 

Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores % of Students Tested Grade 

Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 3        11 * * 11 * * 11 * * 100   

Grade 4        14 13 * 14 13 * 14 13 * 100 100  

Grade 5        7 14 13 7 14 13 7 14 13 100 100 100 

All Grades        32 36 24 32 36 24 32 36 24 100 100 100 
 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard 
Met 

% Standard 
Nearly Met 

% Standard 
Not Met Grade 

Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 3        2366.
0 

* * 0 * * 9 * * 27 * * 64 * * 

Grade 4        2445.
2 

2459.
4 

* 7 7.69 * 21 7.69 * 43 69.23 * 29 15.38 * 

Grade 5        * 2496.
6 

2423.
8 

* 7.14 7.69 * 14.29 7.69 * 57.14 15.38 * 21.43 69.23 

All Grades        N/A N/A N/A 3 13.89 8.33 13 11.11 12.50 38 52.78 20.83 47 22.22 58.33 
 

Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 3        9 * * 18 * * 73 * * 

Grade 4        7 15.38 * 36 53.85 * 57 30.77 * 

Grade 5        * 7.14 7.69 * 64.29 15.38 * 28.57 76.92 
All Grades        
 
 

6 16.67 12.50 31 55.56 25.00 63 27.78 62.50 
 

Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 3        0 * * 45 * * 55 * * 

Grade 4        7 7.69 * 57 46.15 * 36 46.15 * 

Grade 5        * 7.14 0.00 * 57.14 23.08 * 35.71 76.92 

All Grades        3 11.11 0.00 50 50.00 33.33 47 38.89 66.67 
 

339



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 3        0 * * 73 * * 27 * * 

Grade 4        14 7.69 * 57 69.23 * 29 23.08 * 

Grade 5        * 7.14 7.69 * 71.43 23.08 * 21.43 69.23 

All Grades        6 13.89 12.50 56 63.89 25.00 38 22.22 62.50 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The CAASPP results show that 21% of students are meeting grade level proficiency.        

2. 20.83% are at Standard Nearly Met with 58.3% at Standard Not Met.        

3. Problem Solving and Modeling Data Analyis is the domain with the largest percentage of students Below Standard 
with 66.67%.        

 

340



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

ELPAC Results 
 

2017-18 Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 

Grade 
Level Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 

Students Tested 
Grade K        * * * * 

Grade 1        * * * * 

Grade 2        * * * * 

Grade 3        * * * * 

Grade 4        * * * * 

Grade 5        * * * * 

All Grades           42 
 

Overall Language 
Number and Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Grade 
Level # % # % # % # % 

Total Number of 
Students 

Grade K        * * * * * * * * * 

Grade 1        * * * * * *   * 

Grade 2        * * * * * *   * 

Grade 3          * *   * * * 

Grade 4        * * * * * * * * * 

Grade 5        * * * *     * 

All Grades        15 35.71 15 35.71 * * * * 42 
 

Oral Language 
Number and Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Grade 
Level # % # % # % # % 

Total Number of 
Students 

Grade K        * * * *   * * * 

Grade 1        * * * * * * * * * 

Grade 2        * * * *     * 

Grade 3        * *   * * * * * 

Grade 4        * * * * * * * * * 

Grade 5        * * * *     * 

All Grades        26 61.90 * * * * * * 42 
 

341



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Written Language 
Number and Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Grade 
Level # % # % # % # % 

Total Number of 
Students 

Grade K        * * * * * * * * * 

Grade 1        * * * * * * * * * 

Grade 2        * * * * * * * * * 

Grade 3            * * * * * 

Grade 4          * * * * * * * 

Grade 5        * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        11 26.19 * * 13 30.95 * * 42 
 

Listening Domain 
Number and Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Grade 
Level Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number of 

Students 
Grade K        * * * * * * * 

Grade 1        * * * * * * * 

Grade 2        * * * *   * 

Grade 3        * * * * * * * 

Grade 4        * * * * * * * 

Grade 5        * * * *   * 

All Grades        26 61.90 11 26.19 * * 42 
 

Speaking Domain 
Number and Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Grade 
Level Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number of 

Students 
Grade K        * * * * * * * 

Grade 1        * * * * * * * 

Grade 2        * * * *   * 

Grade 3        * *   * * * 

Grade 4        * * * *   * 

Grade 5        * * * *   * 

All Grades        23 54.76 14 33.33 * * 42 
 

342



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Reading Domain 
Number and Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Grade 
Level Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number of 

Students 
Grade K        * * * * * * * 

Grade 1        * * * * * * * 

Grade 2        * * * * * * * 

Grade 3          * * * * * 

Grade 4          * * * * * 

Grade 5          * * * * * 

All Grades        * * 21 50.00 11 26.19 42 
 

Writing Domain 
Number and Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Grade 
Level Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number of 

Students 
Grade K        * * * * * * * 

Grade 1        * * * * * * * 

Grade 2        * * * *   * 

Grade 3          * * * * * 

Grade 4          * *   * 

Grade 5        * * * * * * * 

All Grades        14 33.33 23 54.76 * * 42 
 

 
 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Cohort size isn't large enough to report.        

2. 71% of the students scored a level 3 or 4 on the ELPAC in 2018.        

3. Written language has the lowest percentage of students at a level 4 with 26%.        

 

343



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 

2017-18 Student Population 

Total 
Enrollment 

55        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

94.5%        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 

English  
Learners 

76.4%        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 

Foster 
Youth 

This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 

 
2017-18 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 

Student Group Total Percentage 

English Learners        42 76.4% 

Homeless        2 3.6% 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        52 94.5% 

Students with Disabilities        4 7.3% 
 

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 

Student Group Total Percentage 

American Indian        1 1.8% 

Asian        2 3.6% 

Hispanic        48 87.3% 

White        4 7.3% 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Over 3/4 of the students enrolled at Grand Island are English Learners.        

2. 94% of the students are socioeconomically disadvantaged.        

3. White students are the next largest student group with 7.3%.        

 

344



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Overall Performance 
 

2018 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 

Academic Performance 

 
English Language Arts 

 
No Performance Color        

 
Mathematics 

 
No Performance Color        

 
English Learner Progress 

 
No Performance Color        

Academic Engagement 

 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
Orange        

Conditions & Climate 

 
Suspension Rate 

 
Yellow        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Chronic Absenteeism is an area that needs direct attention based on the orange color rating.        

2. Suspension rate is in the yellow but with a small student population the percentages can be easily be skewed by 
just one suspension.        

 

345



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 

Red        

0        
Orange        

0        
Yellow        

0        
Green        

0        
Blue        

0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
No Performance Color         

63.7 points below standard         

Declined -36.7 points         

22 students        

English Learners 

 
No Performance Color         

81.3 points below standard         

Declined -37.1 points         

19 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
No Performance Color         

78.6 points below standard         

Declined -44.1 points         

20 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

4 students        

 

346



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Hispanic 

 
No Performance Color         

80.1 points below standard         

Declined -37.8 points         

18 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

3 students        

 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

100.6 points below standard         

Declined -29.2 points         

15 students        

Reclassified English Learners 

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

4 students        

English Only 

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

3 students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Due to small student cohorts no  performance colors are given.        

 

347



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
Mathematics 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 

Red        

0        
Orange        

0        
Yellow        

0        
Green        

0        
Blue        

0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
No Performance Color         

77.9 points below standard         

Declined -61.5 points         

22 students        

English Learners 

 
No Performance Color         

95.9 points below standard         

Declined -71.6 points         

19 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
No Performance Color         

93.1 points below standard         

Declined -70.9 points         

20 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

4 students        

 

348



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

2018 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Hispanic 

 
No Performance Color         

92.7 points below standard         

Declined -70.5 points         

18 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

3 students        

 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

112.8 points below standard         

Declined -73 points         

15 students        

Reclassified English Learners 

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

4 students        

English Only 

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

3 students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Due to small student cohorts no performance colors are given for sub groups.        

 

349



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 

 
This section provides a view of the percent of students performing at each level on the new English Language Proficiency 
Assessments for California (ELPAC) assessment.  With the transition ELPAC, the 2018 Dashboard is unable to report a 
performance level (color) for this measure. 

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Proficiency Assessments for California Results 

Number of  
Students 

 
42        

Level 4 
Well 

Developed 
35.7%        

Level 3 
Moderately 
Developed 

35.7%        

Level 2 
Somewhat 
Developed 

16.7%        

Level 1 
Beginning 

Stage 
11.9%        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Nearly 1/3 of our English Learners are performing in the Somehwat Developed and Beginning Stage on ELPAC.        

2. Designated and integrated ELD strategies are proving to be effective with nearly 2/3 of the English Learners 
performing in the Well Developed and Moderately Developed Stages.        

 

350



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 

Red        
0        

Orange        
1        

Yellow        
0        

Green        
2        

Blue        
0        

 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Orange         

5.4% chronically absent         

Increased 2.1%         

56 students        

English Learners 

 
Green         

2.4% chronically absent         

Increased 2.4%         

42 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

0 students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

2 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Orange         

5.7% chronically absent         

Increased 2%         

53 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

4 students        

 

351



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

2018 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

0 students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

2 students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

0 students        

Hispanic 

 
Green         

4.1% chronically absent         

Maintained 0.3%         

49 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

0 students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

0 students        

White     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

4 students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The overall performance color for chronic absenteeism is orange.        

2. This Hispanic subroup is in the green with 4% chronically absent.        

3. Continued support is needed to promote the importance of attendance.        

 

352



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 

Red        

0        
Orange        

0        
Yellow        

2        
Green        

0        
Blue        

1        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Yellow         

1.8% suspended at least once         

Maintained 0.1%         
57 students        

English Learners 

 
Blue         

0% suspended at least once         

Declined -2.1%         
43 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          2 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

1.9% suspended at least once         

Maintained 0%         
53 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          4 students        

 

353



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1 students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2 students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

2% suspended at least once         

Maintained 0.2%         
49 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          5 students        

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 

2016     
0% suspended at least once         

2017     
1.6% suspended at least once         

2018     
1.8% suspended at least once         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The small cohort size makes the suspension rate color unreliable.  In 2017 and 2018 we had just 1 suspension each 

year.        
 

354



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Pierce Joint Unified School District students will graduate high school college and career ready.         

 

Goal 1 
Grand Island Elementary Students will meet or exceed standards on the 2019/2020 California 
Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP). Seventy percent of Grand Island 
Elementary School Students will be proficient on SRI in grades 2-5 by the end of the year.          

 
Identified Need 
83% of our student are scoring below standard on CAASPP.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Academic Indicator (Grades 3-
5 English Language Arts) 
 
        

 16% of the students were 
proficient or advanced on 
CAASPP in 2018 

 21% of students will be 
proficient or advanced on 
CAASPP in 2019 

a.) Overall distance from 
standard for all students        

 All students were 63.7 points 
below standard 

 Decrease the points below 
standard by 5 points from 63.7 
to 58.7 points below 

b.) Distance from standard for 
English Learners        

 English Learners were 81.3 
points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 7 points from 81.3 
to 74.3 points below 

c.) Distance from standard for 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged        

 Socioeconomically 
disadvantaged were 78.6 
points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 7 points from 78.6 
to 71.6 points below 

d.) Distance from standard for 
Hispanic sub group        

 Hispanic students were 80.1 
points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 7 from 80.1 points 
to 37.1 points below 

Scholastic Reading Inventory         28% of studets are proficient or 
advanced on SRI 

 Increase percentage of 
students proficient or advanced 
on SRI by 7 percentage points 
from 28% to 35%. 

Projected RIT proficiency         38% of students were 
projected to score a level 3 or 4 
on CAASPP as of March 2019 

 Increase projected proficiency 
from 38% to 40% 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

355



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Model classroom lessons, coach teachers as they teach lessons, provide staff development to 
teachers        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
227,828         NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income 

and Neglected 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
 
Strategy/Activity 
Recognize students with ribbons, books, trophies and medals for reading        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1000         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Paraprofessional will provide additional support for students in language arts during the regular 
school day.  This support will include the increase of para time that was added in 2014-2015.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
23,654         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

356



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students not meeting grade level standards        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Students not meeting standards will have access to after school intervention        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,674         After School and Education Safety (ASES) 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Struggling students will complete the recommended usage of Lexia based on proficiency level        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students enrolled in ASES        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide assistance with homework and offer curriculum enrichment activities to 40 students in 
ASES        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
57,383         After School and Education Safety (ASES) 

357



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 7 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Teachers will receive training on Explicit Direct Instruction strategies with an EL emphasis.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
 

Strategy/Activity 8 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide parent trainings on reading instruction and reading programs        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 9 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Students in grades 1- 5 will do SRI assessments every 6 weeks and take Reading Counts Quizzes        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
920         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 10 
358



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase additional materials needed for full implementation of program        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 11 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase library software to allow students to check-out books for reading        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1,196         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 12 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Teachers will insist on students setting goals for Reading Counts and insisting on reaching their 
reading challenge        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
100         Lottery: Unrestricted 

359



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 32 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 13 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Bus riders        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide transportation for late bus route to extend school day for RtI        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
10,936         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 14 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase additional books to increase library collections        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
350         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 

Strategy/Activity 15 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Compass Learning        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,030         Lottery:  Instructional Materials 

360



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 33 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

5,740         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 16 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
School library and computer lab will be open one day a week for 2 hours in the summer for 
students to checkout books, take Reading Counts quizzes, and utilize Compass Learning.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 
200         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
We implemented each of the actions in goal 1.  We have a large percentage of our student 
population not meeting grade level standards.  With such small cohorts the data is easily skewed 
and can be easily misinterpreted.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences between intended implementation and the budgeted expenditures.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
Distance from level 3 will be monitored for various sub groups to determine future areas of focus or 
need. We will continue with previous actions as we are seeing positive results.        

 

361



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 34 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Pierce Joint Unified School District students will graduate high school college and career ready.         

 

Goal 2 
Grand Island Elementary School students will meet or exceed standards on the 2019/2020 
California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) in mathematics. Seventy 
percent of students in K-2 will be at grade level proficiency on the NWEA Maps test. We will have a 
projected proficiency of 70% on the NWEA MAPS assessment.          

 
Identified Need 
79% of the students are not meeting grade level standard.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Academic Indicator (Grades 3-
8): Math        

 21% of the students were 
proficient or advanced on 
CAASPP in 2018 

 30% of the students will be 
proficient or advanced on 
CAASPP in 2019 

a.) Distance from standard for 
all students        

 All students were 77.9 points 
below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 5 from 77.9 to 72.9 
points below standard 

b.) Distance from standard for 
English Learners        

 English Learners were 95.9 
points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 5 tfrom 95.9 to 
90.9 points below standard 

c.) distance from standard for 
Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged        

 Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students were 
93.1 points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 5 from 93.1 to to 
88.1 points below standard 

d.) Distance from standard for 
Hispanic sub group        

 Hispanic students were 17.7 
points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 5 from 17.7 to 12.7 
points below standard 

e.) Distance from standard for 
Special Education sub group        

 Hispanic students were 92.7 
points below standard 

 Decrease points below 
standard by 5 from 92.7 to 87.7 
points below standard 

Academic Indicator: NWEA 
Projected Proficiency        

 37% of students were 
projected to score a level 3 or 4 
on CAASPP as of March 2019 

 Increase projected proficiency 
from 37% to 39% 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

362



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 35 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase additional math resource materials as needed.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1000         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Students will receive extra mathematics support from paraprofessional during the school day.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
5,763         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Recognize students for increasing math fact proficiency.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
200         Lottery: Unrestricted 

363



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 36 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide FASTT Math computer program for math facts for all students in grades 2-6        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
350         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Students will be placed in before, during, or after school intervention with a focus of making math 
fun.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Provide training on math content standards and curriculum as well as the 8 mathematical practices        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
600         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

364



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 37 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 7 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students in grades 3-6        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Implement math performance tasks and analyze results at least 6x year        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
 

Strategy/Activity 8 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All Students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Implement Compass Learning computer software for levelized independent instruction        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
FASTT Math computer program was not utilized with fidelity.  We focused on Mathematical Mindset 
as opposed to the 8 Mathematical Practices.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences        

365



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 38 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We will continue focusing on the Mathematical Mindset and integrating the 8 Mathematical 
Practices in to staff development. We will be working as a staff to determine best way to hold 
students accountable with math facts.        

 

366



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 39 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Pierce Joint Unified School District students will graduate high school college and career ready.         

 

Goal 3 
Students enrolled at Grand Island Elementary since kindergarten will be reclassified by 5th grade.          

 
Identified Need 
Reading and writing continue to have the lowest percentage of students at the Well Developed level 
and therefore is the main reasons students are not reclassified.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Number of Long Term EL's         We currently do not have any 
long-term EL students at GI 

 Maintain 

Number of 5th Grade Students 
Not Reclassified        

 41% of the students going to 
6th grade are English Learners 

 Decrease this percentage from 
41% to 30% 

Percent of Level 1 and Level 2 
on ELPAC for K-5        

 In 2018 we had 21.94% in level 
2 and 11.91% in level 1 

 Decrease percent of student in 
level 1 and 2 from 33.8% to 
28.33% 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
Students new to the United States        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Rosetta Stone computer software will be utilized as an additional resource for new comers        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
360         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

367



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 40 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Students not progressing one language level per year will receive additional ELD support services 
from ELD teacher (.40 FTE)        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
48,820         Title III Part A: Language Instruction for LEP 

Students 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Teachers will review ELPAC data at least twice a year (or as available).        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
ELD training will be provided to ELD staff and classroom teachers a minimum of 1x a month        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
 

368



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 41 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
English Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Administrator will hold 'academic conferencing' and 'test chats' with all students to determine areas 
of strength and growth.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
 

Strategy/Activity 6 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
4th and 5th grade English Learners        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase Kate Kinsella curriculum to be utilized in ELD workshops for 4th and 5th grade students.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
2,000         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Actions in goal 3 were implemented as planned.  We do not have any long-term English Learners 
at GI but we do have a large percentage of students not meeting grade level standards.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 

369



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 42 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

No major differences between the actions and implementation.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We will be purchasing a curriculum to use in 4th and 5th grade designated ELD workshop. This 
action has been added to goal 3. We will also educate parents on the importance of reading and 
provide strategies they can implement at home.        

 

370



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 43 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Pierce Joint Unified School District students will feel a sense of connectedness academically, socially, emotionally, and 
physically in their schools.         

 

Goal 4 
5th graders will score in the Healthy Fitness Zone (HFZ) for Body Composition.          

 
Identified Need 
61.5% of the 5th grade students are not in the Healthy Fitness Zone for Body Composition.  38.4% 
of the students are in the Health Risk area for Body Composition.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Physical Fitness Test         38.5 % of the 5th graders are 
scoring in the HFZ for Body 
Composition 

 Increase the percentage of 
students in the HFZ for Body 
Composition by 10% from 
38.5% to 48.5%. 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Cardio will makeup 70% of the students time in P.E.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        

371



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 44 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

 
Strategy/Activity 
Increase playground equipment available to students        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
500         Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase Adventure Fitness subscription for rainy day PE activity        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
100         Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue toe token incentive for laps ran        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
150         Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        

372



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 45 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

 
Strategy/Activity 
Continue UC Extension Cal Fresh program and promote healthy eating        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
We implemented all actions as planned but we still have a significant percentage of students not in 
the Healthy Fitness Zone.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences in actions and budgeted expenditures.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We will add an action that promotes healthy eating habits  through the UC Extension office.        

 

373



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 46 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Pierce Joint Unified District students will feel a sense of contentedness academically, socially, emotionally, and 
physically in their schools.         

 

Goal 5 
Students will feel a sense of contentedness in school environment.          

 
Identified Need 
We were in the orange for chronic absenteeism and in the yellow for suspension rate.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Student Surveys         85% of the students feel they 
belong at school. 

  

Chronic Absenteeism         5.4% of our students are 
chornically absent. 

 Decrease the percentage of 
students chronically absent by 
2% from 5.4% to 3.4%. 

Suspension Rate         1.8% suspension rate.  We had 1 suspension in 2018 
but the small enrollment 
number skews the data 
percentages. Maintain. 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Maintain school counselor        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 

374



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 47 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

         District Funded 

Strategy/Activity 2 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Implement Grizzly Store for Positive Behavior Intervention System        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1000         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 3 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Purchase Suite360 and ISS curriculum        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
1500         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

Strategy/Activity 4 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Meet with students who have chronic absences 1x month and set goals.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 

375



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 48 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

250         Lottery: Unrestricted 

Strategy/Activity 5 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Train conflict facilitators in the 4th and 5th grade to mediate student to student issues.        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
 

 
 

Annual Review 
SPSA Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
All actions in the plan were implemented.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
No major differences between intended implementation and budget.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
We will continue with previous actions.        

 

376



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 49 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Goals, Strategies, & Proposed Expenditures 
 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the school’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
LEA/LCAP Goal 
Pierce Joint Unified School District Students will graduate college and career ready.         

 

Goal 6 
Purchase technology that will enhance educational program.          

 
Identified Need 
New equipment has to be purchased to maintain the rotation of technology equipment.         

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metric/Indicator Baseline/Actual Outcome Expected Outcome 

Replacement Chart         Currently 3 tablets need to be 
upgraded 

 Postponing upgrade until 
technology pilot is completed 

Replacement Chart         3 teacher laptops were 
purchased in 17-18 

 Maintain 

 
Complete a copy of the Strategy/Activity table for each of the school’s strategies/activities. Duplicate 
the table, including Proposed Expenditures, as needed. 
startcollapse 

Strategy/Activity 1 
Students to be Served by this Strategy/Activity 
(Identify either All Students or one or more specific student groups) 
All students        
 
Strategy/Activity 
Update computers, printers, purchase tablets, interactive boards, ink cartridges and projector bulbs        
 
Proposed Expenditures for this Strategy/Activity 
List the amount(s) and funding source(s) for the proposed expenditures. Specify the funding 
source(s) using one or more of the following: LCFF, Federal (if Federal identify the Title and Part, as 
applicable), Other State, and/or Local. 
 
Amount(s) Source(s) 
5000         LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration 

 
 

Annual Review 

377



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 50 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

SPSA Year Reviewed: 2018-19 
Respond to the following prompts relative to this goal. If the school is in the first year of 
implementing the goal, an analysis is not required and this section may be deleted. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness of the 
strategies/activities to achieve the articulated goal. 
Technology rotation has been maintained for Elmos, mimio boards, and laptops.        
 
Briefly describe any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted 
expenditures to implement the strategies/activities to meet the articulated goal. 
We have budgeted $5,000 for technology purchases but we are holding off on purchasing until pilot 
is complete so the actual expenditure will likely be less.        
 
Describe any changes that will be made to this goal, the annual outcomes, metrics, or 
strategies/activities to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis. Identify where those changes can 
be found in the SPSA. 
No changes made to the goal.        

 

378



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 51 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

Budget Summary 
 
Complete the table below. Schools may include additional information. Adjust the table as needed. The Budget Summary 
is required for schools funded through the ConApp, and/or that receive funds from the LEA for Comprehensive Support and 
Improvement (CSI). 
 
Budget Summary 
 

Description  Amount 

Total Funds Provided to the School Through the Consolidated Application  $11,800 

Total Federal Funds Provided to the School from the LEA for CSI  $0 

Total Funds Budgeted for Strategies to Meet the Goals in the SPSA  $409,104.00 

 
Other Federal, State, and Local Funds 
 
List the additional Federal programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Adjust the table as needed. If 
the school is not operating a Title I schoolwide program this section is not applicable and may be deleted. 
 
startcollapse 

Federal Programs  Allocation ($) 

Title III Part A: Language Instruction for LEP Students        $48,820.00 

 
Subtotal of additional federal funds included for this school: $48,820.00 
 
List the State and local programs that the school is including in the schoolwide program. Duplicate the 
table as needed. 
startcollapse 

State or Local Programs  Allocation ($) 

After School and Education Safety (ASES)        $59,057.00 

LCFF: Supplemental/Concentration        $67,719.00 

Lottery:  Instructional Materials        $2,380.00 

Lottery: Unrestricted        $2,550.00 

NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected        $227,828.00 

Unrestricted        $750.00 

 
Subtotal of state or local funds included for this school: $360,284.00 
 
Total of federal, state, and/or local funds for this school: $409,104.00 

379



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 52 of 53 Grand Island Elementary School

School Site Council Membership 
 
California Education Code describes the required composition of the School Site Council (SSC). The SSC shall be 
composed of the principal and representatives of: teachers selected by teachers at the school; other school personnel 
selected by other school personnel at the school; parents of pupils attending the school selected by such parents; and, in 
secondary schools, pupils selected by pupils attending the school.  The current make-up of the SSC is as follows: 
 
1 School Principal        
3 Classroom Teachers        

1 Other School Staff        

5 Parent or Community Members        
 
startcollapse 

Name of Members  Role 

Summer Shadley         X Principal        

Cindy Tellez         X Classroom Teacher        

Gemma Godinez         X Parent or Community Member        

Andrea Navarro         X Parent or Community Member        

Lizbet Martinez         X Parent or Community Member        

Zac Willoh         X Parent or Community Member        

Lori Auteri         X Parent or Community Member        

Lisa Kitchen         X Classroom Teacher        

Jennifer Kessinger         X Classroom Teacher        

Jasmin Duarte         X Other School Staff        
 
At elementary schools, the school site council must be constituted to ensure parity between (a) the principal, classroom 
teachers, and other school personnel, and (b) parents of students attending the school or other community members. 
Classroom teachers must comprise a majority of persons represented under section (a). At secondary schools there must 
be, in addition, equal numbers of parents or other community members selected by parents, and students. Members must 
be selected by their peer group. 

380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425



426



427



428



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 1 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

 
School Year:    2019-20     

SPSA Title Page 
 

 

School Plan for Student Achievement 
(SPSA) Template 
 
Instructions and requirements for completing the SPSA template may be found in the SPSA Template 
Instructions. 

School Name 
Pierce High 
School/Arbuckle 
Alternative High School         

County-District-School 
(CDS) Code 

06616140635250         

Schoolsite Council 
(SSC) Approval Date 

May 22, 2019         

Local Board Approval 
Date 

June 20, 2019         

 

Purpose and Description 
 
Briefly describe the purpose of this plan (Select from Schoolwide Program, Comprehensive Support 
and Improvement, Targeted Support and Improvement, or Additional Targeted Support and 
Improvement) 
X Schoolwide Program        
 School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) for Pierce HS 2019        

 
Briefly describe the school’s plan for effectively meeting the ESSA requirements in alignment with the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and other federal, state, and local programs. 
The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) includes strategies to meet the identified school 
needs and provides opportunities for ALL students to meet and exceed the California State 
Standards.  The SPSA also addresses the needs of ALL students, particularly those students who 
are at risk of not meeting the standards additional assistance, supports and intervention. The Pierce 
High School School Plan for Student Achievement is aligned with and supports the PJUSD Local 
Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) and is monitored throughout the school year by the School Site 
Council, the District and various Stakeholder Groups/         
 

429



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 2 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

Comprehensive Needs Assessment Components 
 
Data Analysis 
Please refer to the School and Student Performance Data section where an analysis is provided. 
 
Surveys 
This section provides a description of surveys (i.e., Student, Parent, Teacher) used during the school-year, and a summary 
of results from the survey(s). 
         

 
Classroom Observations 
This section provides a description of types and frequency of classroom observations conducted during the school-year and 
a summary of findings. 
Pierce High School Teachers are observed with frequent drop-ins and longer observation throughout the year not only 
by the principal and vice-principal but occasionally, peer to peer. Typically, written feedback is given via Progress 
Advisor. other times it may just be a verbal follow-up on the classroom practices that were observed. All probationary 
teachers are formally observed more than 2 times per year for full class periods and provided a written evaluation by 
May 1. Tenured teachers are formally evaluated as per the contract depending on years of service.         

 
Analysis of Current Instructional Program 
The following statements are derived from the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 1965 and Essential 
Program Components (EPCs). In conjunction with the needs assessments, these categories may be used to discuss and 
develop critical findings that characterize current instructional practice for numerically significant subgroups as well as 
individual students who are: 
 

• Not meeting performance goals 
• Meeting performance goals 
• Exceeding performance goals 

 
Discussion of each of these statements should result in succinct and focused findings based on verifiable facts. Avoid vague 
or general descriptions. Each successive school plan should examine the status of these findings and note progress made.  
Special consideration should be given to any practices, policies, or procedures found to be noncompliant through ongoing 
monitoring of categorical programs. 
 
Standards, Assessment, and Accountability 

430



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 3 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

 
Use of state and local assessments to modify instruction and improve student achievement (ESEA) 
In assessing student progress, the administration and staff at Pierce High School use a variety of tools and metrics. 
Currently the district is contracting with Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA) to evaluate student progress and 
preparation for standardized assessment. These standardized online assessments provide data about individual 
students, and offer students tools for analyzing their own college preparedness. In addition, standardized assessments 
such as CAASPP, PSAT, SAT, ACT, and ELPAC are used to provide college readiness and English language 
proficiency (for EL students). Teacher generated assessments (tests, written work and projects) provide a valuable 
source of student progress data. 
 
California state assessments (CAASPP) are used annually for monitoring overall and individual student achievement.  
Results are provided to staff as soon as they are available, and site administration reviews results with the faculty as a 
whole as well as with individual teachers to identify areas for refinement of instruction. Local assessments are also used 
to assess student achievement.  Local assessments include tests created in Illuminate, using the Smarter Balance 
system (IABs, Performance Tasks, and ICAs) as well as assessments generated from the new English curriculum Study 
Sync. 
 
Teacher goals are created and tied directly to these results and site administration meets with individual teachers and 
departments in academic conferences to review progress toward these goals at least three times per year.  PHS takes 
advantage of the CAASPP interim assessments/performance tasks and administers them at least four times during the 
school year in addition to other local assessments.  Data reports are submitted to the staff, parents, and the school 
board. 
 
Given the individualized nature of the program at AAHS, students are assessed locally as they complete units in the 
course work they require. 
 

 

431



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 4 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

Use of data to monitor student progress on curriculum-embedded assessments and modify instruction (EPC) 
For students in the CTE pathways, industry tests are a useful source of achievement data. The staff has access to a 
variety of assessment tools that assist in data analysis. Individual teachers are able to look at their student data and 
instructional changes are made following analysis of a formative or summative teacher generated assessment.  
 
Data disaggregation is done by some individuals using methodology or tools of their choosing. It is not institutionalized. 
Individual student results are reported to parents via parent teacher conferences in September and March, progress 
reports, online parent portal, and report cards. These results are also available at any time on Aeries.net. Modification of 
instruction driven by assessment data is for the most part not documented. Teachers rely on mandatory tutoring and 
English support classes as the best documented solution for supporting student struggling in classes. A second 
intervention is the use of Student Staffing Meetings (SSM). These are initiated by any adult on campus, or parent, when 
a student is perceived to be struggling with classes or Student Learner Outcome acquisition. An SSM provides parents 
with information about options for helping students get back on track. A formal SST may follow, if necessary. 
 
School grades are reported to parents eight times per year. Other measures of student progress are shared with parents 
through the advisory teacher parent conferences held twice per year. Student progress is reported to the governing 
board through the principal via the district superintendent. These reports focus on required assessment reports 
(CAASPP-State assessments, district benchmarks, NWEA, and graduation rates) and some of the industrial 
certifications. Successes on various competitions (often sponsored by CTE industries) are triumphed before the board. 
 
Pierce High School has a set syllabus that is used in all classes and teachers will be responsible for reporting for their 
courses how they will assess the schoolwide learner outcomes (SLOs). 
 
“BEARS” CARE! 
 
Critical Thinkers Who: 

• Successfully acquire, analyze, organize, and apply information. 
• Develop and express creative ideas and solutions 
• Examine moral, ethical, and cultural issues from multiple perspectives. 
• Integrate and synthesize information across disciplines. 
• Demonstrate growth in higher level thinking skills. 

Accomplished Lifelong Learners Who: 
 Commit to high academic and personal standards. 
 Understand the importance of new experiences and continual education. 
 Work well collaboratively in culturally and organizationally diverse settings. 

Responsible Citizens Who: 
 Understand and appreciate their roles and responsibilities in a global society. 
 Acknowledge and are accountable for their actions and choices. 
 Demonstrate respect, trustworthiness, responsibility, fairness, caring, and citizenship. 
 Recognize the impact of human activities on the environment, and their role in its protection. 
 Understand the choices necessary to develop a healthy lifestyle. 

Effective Communicators Who: 
 Listen and communicate well in written, verbal, and nonverbal modes. 
 Understand and use technology in communication. 
 Show respect for diverse perspectives. 
 Research, create, and evaluate in written, verbal, and nonverbal modes. 
 Use communication skills to resolve conflicts through positive alternatives. 

 
Staffing and Professional Development 

432



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 5 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

 
Status of meeting requirements for highly qualified staff (ESEA) 
The PHS staff consists of one Principal, one Vice Principal, one counselor, one behavior/social-emotional counselor, one 
attendance/behavior/social-emotional counselor (Grant Year 2) one college and career technician, 25 teachers, two 
clerical employees, four cafeteria employees, three custodial employees, and four Special Education Aides.  A School 
Resource Officer is assigned to the campus, though shared with other high schools in Colusa County, and a school 
nurse and school psychologist are on call as needed from the district office. 
 
Eight staff members have a master’s degree and one holds a doctorate. The average tenure of the teaching staff is 12 
years, though that is from a range of Intern to thirty-four years. All but one of the teaching staff are “Highly Qualified” per 
NCLB and two are teaching outside their credential authorization in 2018-19. Two teachers are working as Interns 
through Chico State for the 18-19 academic year. 
 

 
Sufficiency of credentialed teachers and teacher professional development (e.g., access to instructional materials training 
on SBE-adopted instructional materials) (EPC) 
Two teachers are working as Interns through Chico State for the 18-19 academic year. Pierce Joint Unified School 
District has provided a wide array of professional development opportunities for the staff at Pierce High School. In some 
cases it has been for all staff, such as the training on implementation of Common core standards, ERWC training for 
each of our ELA teachers, College Preparatory Mathematics training and coaching, Google Docs, Google Classroom 
and Chromebooks, Illuminate, NWEA, and the use of Aeries. Other opportunities have been for one person or small 
groups to address subject specific needs such as Adaptive PE, or Next Generation Science Standards. 
 
Through professional development, the staff strives to remain up to date on educational theory and knowledge of 
research based best instructional practices that will address standards.  Teachers attempt to ensure that all students are 
learning (accessing information, understanding procedures and demonstrating knowledge of standards) through regular 
interaction with students in the classroom. Common use of various checking for understanding techniques are 
employed.  In addition, where there are project based learning activities, teachers meet one-on-one with a small group to 
monitor progress. 
 
Several classes offered at Pierce High School require some form of culminating activity/project to demonstrate learning. 
These activities/projects require that students demonstrate problem solving skills, critical thinking and the ability to work 
in a collaboratively group. Summative assessments require demonstration of application and creative use of acquired 
knowledge.  Technology use is evident in various presentations done using multimedia, and student use of 
Chromebooks and Google Classroom.  We are now over one-to-one at PHS.  All students have access to Chromebooks 
in each class. 
 

 
Alignment of staff development to content standards, assessed student performance, and professional needs (ESEA) 
All staff development activities focus on the elements of standards based instruction including: identification of essential 
standards, assessment of student achievement, evaluation of achievement data, using data to inform instruction, 
alignment of grading practices to standards mastery, and communicating progress to parents and students. 
 
Specifically teachers received training in the use of the Illuminate software to administer assessments and analyze data.  
In addition, all teachers are participating in ongoing professional development in the implementation of CCSS in either 
ELA, Mathematics, the new Social Science Framework, or the Next Generation Science Standards as appropriate to 
their respective assignments. The PHS Agriculture and Business teachers incorporate the CTE Standards in their lesson 
design and teaching practices. 
 

 
Ongoing instructional assistance and support for teachers (e.g., use of content experts and instructional coaches) (EPC) 
Teachers are supported through regular visits by site administrators many are entered on Progress Adviser, weekly 
instructional focus messages from administration, weekly Wednesday staff development including collaboration, district 
level support as needed, and county/regional staff development opportunities. 

 

433



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 6 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

Teacher collaboration by grade level (kindergarten through grade eight [K–8]) and department (grades nine through twelve) 
(EPC) 
Department collaboration (PLC) occurs regularly on a weekly basis (each Wednesday 2:20 to 4:30) as well as the school 
wide staff development times. 

 
Teaching and Learning 
 
Alignment of curriculum, instruction, and materials to content and performance standards (ESEA) 
PHS and AAHS faculty are engaged in ongoing refinement of curriculum, materials and instruction to ensure alignment 
to content standards and increasing student achievement. We are regularly revisiting our schoolwide learner outcomes 
(SLOs) for each course and student performance on local and state assessments to increase rigor and improve student 
learning results. 

 
Adherence to recommended instructional minutes for reading/language arts and mathematics (K–8) (EPC) 
N/A Pierce HS is grades 9-12. 

 
Lesson pacing schedule (K–8) and master schedule flexibility for sufficient numbers of intervention courses (EPC) 
This is the 3 year that PHS has implemented Student Staffing Meetings (SSMs). The principal, vice principal, counselors 
(both behavioral and academic), special education teachers, as well as the School Resource Officer (when he is able to 
be on campus) meet weekly to discuss student concerns that have come to our attention as being a concern either 
academically, socially, or behaviorally. 
 
The principal established an email account (PHSSST) that all staff can submit names and reasons why they are 
concerned about a particular student. A packet of information is created for the team and they examine each student and 
discuss why he or she is struggling. Often times this meeting leads to a Student Study Team meeting with the parents 
and all the student’s teachers. In some cases, a simple call home to alert the parent that there are concerns is sufficient, 
or we may need to change the students schedule or add a support class. 
 
We have been able to maintain five sections of a Support Class in our master schedule. In this class, the teacher works 
individually with each student on the assignments they may be struggling with. We also continue using the Intervention 
program, Edmentum. All students begin the course by taking an assessment in Reading and Math. After the assessment 
is complete, the program automatically creates a prescription, or intervention lessons, for students to help them in both 
Reading and Math. The program looks at skill gaps all the way back to kindergarten. 
 
In addition to instructional practices and support meetings, extra tutoring is available outside of the regular day with 
services provided by the teachers. 
 
The instructional model at Arbuckle Alternative High School is based on individual intervention. Students are placed in 
coursework appropriate to their respective levels and supported based on their individual needs. 
 

 
Availability of standards-based instructional materials appropriate to all student groups (ESEA) 
All courses have sufficient adopted materials that are aligned to their respective content standards.  CPM math pilot 
began in the 17/18 school year in the Math 1, grew to Math 2 in the 18/19 school year. In the 19/20 school year Math 3 
will be included. 

 
Use of SBE-adopted and standards-aligned instructional materials, including intervention materials, and for high school 
students, access to standards-aligned core courses (EPC) 
All courses have sufficient adopted materials that are aligned to their respective content standards, including intervention 
materials, where needed. All students have access to and are enrolled in standards-aligned courses consistent with their 
individual learning needs. 

 
Opportunity and Equal Educational Access 

434



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 7 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

 
Services provided by the regular program that enable underperforming students to meet standards (ESEA) 
In addition to in-class support, all teachers meet with students before and after school to provide additional instruction, 
tutorials and remediation based on individual needs. Transitioning EL students are also provided a support class as 
needed to support their language development and access to core content as needed. 

 
Evidence-based educational practices to raise student achievement 
For the past seven years Pierce High School and Arbuckle Alternative High School staff development has been focused 
on the Explicit Direct Instruction model as presented by DataWORKS Educational Research.  It is based on several 
years of classroom research and student assessment data.  Lesson design is centered on a clearly stated, standard-
based, measurable learning objective which is clearly communicated to students prior to instruction. 
 
The format includes direct instruction of the target content knowledge and/or skill, frequent checking for understanding, 
guided practice, independent practice and closure. Students receive immediate feedback on their progress through 
direct interaction with the teacher throughout the course of the lesson and future instruction is informed by the teacher's 
regular checking for understanding and observation of student performance. 
 

 
Parental Engagement 
 
Resources available from family, school, district, and community to assist under-achieving students (ESEA) 
In addition to ELD and support classes in the master schedule, Pierce High School offers tutorial support after school 
three days per week that includes transportation home, if needed. Teachers are available to all students and specifically 
refer particular students to attend sessions for the individual needs. 

 
Involvement of parents, community representatives, classroom teachers, other school personnel, and students in secondary 
schools, in the planning, implementation, and evaluation of ConApp programs (5 California Code of Regulations 3932) 
The Pierce High School and Arbuckle Alternative High School Site Council is comprised of three students, three parents, 
three classroom teachers, the counselor, a classified representative, and the principal. This body reviews student 
achievement data and presents information from their respective groups for consideration in creating the school action 
plan goals.  Budget allocations for consolidated application programs are made by the site council within the action plan. 

 
Funding 
 
Services provided by categorical funds that enable underperforming students to meet standards (ESEA) 
Edmentum is a purchased program that allows the teachers to identify gaps in underlying skills, provide additional 
instruction and practice for students to facilitate success in their math and ELA courses.  This is to provide extended 
learning time after school and during the summer, and to expand student access to technology. Supplemental funds also 
support additional ELD instruction in small classes.  Staff development has also been provided and will continue in the 
applications of mathematics to help teachers implement activities to increase student understanding of concepts at the 
concrete as well as conceptual level.  We will continue to ensure that we are providing research tools for students in the 
new College and Career Center, Get Focused Stay Focused Program and "My10 Year Plan" that are being developed 
using funds from the College Readiness Grant and CTEIG (Career and Technical Education Incentive Grant). 

 
Fiscal support (EPC) 
Allocation of fiscal resources are aligned with the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA). 

 

435



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 8 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

Stakeholder Involvement 
 
How, when, and with whom did the school consult as part of the planning process for this 
SPSA/Annual Review and Update? 
 
Involvement Process for the SPSA and Annual Review and Update 
Stakeholder involvement for the School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) is a year around 
process that originates in both the monthly School Site Council Meetings (2nd Tuesday) and at least 
once a month in the staff meeting portion of the Wednesday 
Collaboration Day. The SPSA also informs LPAC. The School Plan for Student Achievement 
document was also a major part of our WASC midterm visit on March 3/4/5, 2019 
         
 
Resource Inequities 
 
Briefly identify and describe any resource inequities identified as a result of the required needs 
assessment, as applicable.  
N/A         

 

436



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 9 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Student Group 

 
Student Enrollment by Subgroup 

Percent of Enrollment Number of Students 
Student Group 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

American Indian     0.2% % % 1          

African American     1.8% 1.8% 1.38% 8        8 6 

Asian     0.9% 1.4% 0.46% 4        6 2 

Filipino     0.2% 0.2% 0.23% 1        1 1 

Hispanic/Latino     72.0% 72.5% 73.62% 318        322 321 

Pacific Islander     0.2% 0.2% % 1        1  

White     24.2% 23.4% 23.85% 107        104 104 

Multiple/No Response     0.5% % % 2          

 Total Enrollment 442 444 436 
 

Student Enrollment 
Enrollment By Grade Level 

 
Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Number of Students 
Grade 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

Grade 9        109 121 112 

Grade 10        110 111 114 

Grade 11        110 107 108 

Grade 12        113 105 102 

Total Enrollment        442 444 436 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The total number of students that we are serving at the high school remains constant in the 436 - 444 range with 

approximately 110 students per class. We do see two distinct classes coming to us in the classes of 2024 (147 
students) and 2026 (130 students) that will result in the need for additional texts, desks and probably staff.        

2. As our student populations remain steady so do our "student groups". Our major "student groups" are 
Hispanic/Latino ~74% and White ~23%        

3. TBD        

 

437



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 10 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Enrollment 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

 
English Learner (EL) Enrollment 

Number of Students Percent of Students 
Student Group 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

English Learners        61 41 39 13.8% 9.2% 8.9% 

Fluent English Proficient (FEP)        223 239 243 50.5% 53.8% 55.7% 

Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP)        6 27 6 10.3% 44.3% 14.6% 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Over the past three school years the number of English Learners has dropped from 61 to 41 to 39 but the needs 

are changing and becoming more polarized in 19/20 the high school will team with the middle school to teach the 
"Newcomers" and Level 1 ELs during 1st and 2nd periods        

2. As assessment of EL's changed drastically from the CELDT in 16/17 to the ELPAC in 18/19 redesignation has 
changed.  Updated professional development and more monitoring will be integral as the assessment has changed 
drastically as well as the level of the students coming into PJUSD        

3. TBD        

 

438



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 11 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
English Language Arts/Literacy (All Students) 

 
Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores % of Students Tested Grade 

Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 11        110 109 100 106 104 98 106 104 98 96.4 95.4 98 

All Grades        110 109 100 106 104 98 106 104 98 96.4 95.4 98 
 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard 
Met 

% Standard 
Nearly Met 

% Standard 
Not Met Grade 

Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 11        2556.
9 

2603.
6 

2596.
2 

10 21.15 16.33 30 36.54 42.86 31 26.92 24.49 28 15.38 16.33 

All Grades        N/A N/A N/A 10 21.15 16.33 30 36.54 42.86 31 26.92 24.49 28 15.38 16.33 
 

Reading 
Demonstrating understanding of literary and non-fictional texts 
% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 

Grade Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 11        13 34.62 27.55 59 43.27 58.16 28 22.12 14.29 

All Grades        13 34.62 27.55 59 43.27 58.16 28 22.12 14.29 
 

Writing 
Producing clear and purposeful writing 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 11        24 30.77 22.45 44 48.08 56.12 32 21.15 21.43 

All Grades        24 30.77 22.45 44 48.08 56.12 32 21.15 21.43 
 

Listening 
Demonstrating effective communication skills 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 11        11 23.08 14.29 68 65.38 72.45 21 11.54 13.27 

All Grades        11 23.08 14.29 68 65.38 72.45 21 11.54 13.27 
 

Research/Inquiry 
Investigating, analyzing, and presenting information 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 11        21 29.81 32.65 62 54.81 53.06 17 15.38 14.29 

All Grades        21 29.81 32.65 62 54.81 53.06 17 15.38 14.29 

439



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 12 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Participation rate was made for the 17-18 school year (98%).  In 18/19 a strong emphasis was placed on college 

and career readiness all year to ensure that all students take a variety of assessments throughout their high school 
experience as well as ensuring that they understand the importance of the tests.  All 11th graders had individual 
goal setting conferences with the math teachers, counselors and administration.        

2. Test scores increased in ELA in the 16-17 school year by 17%. And another 2.5% in ELA in 17/18.  Although this is 
not cohort day it is important data to interpret and analyze.        

3. There was a strong emphasis placed on those students and moving them to at or above standard through 
academic support/intervention.  An in depth look needs to be taken to see if classes are seeing the same 
weaknesses that are not tested with the CAASPP.  There has been a strong push for students to understand the 
importance of assessment and what it means to their personal/individual needs as students.        

 

440



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 13 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

CAASPP Results 
Mathematics (All Students) 

 

Overall Participation for All Students 

# of Students Enrolled # of Students Tested # of Students with 
Scores % of Students Tested Grade 

Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 11        110 109 100 106 105 98 106 105 98 96.4 96.3 98 

All Grades        110 109 100 106 105 98 106 105 98 96.4 96.3 98 
 

Overall Achievement for All Students 

Mean Scale Score % Standard 
Exceeded 

% Standard 
Met 

% Standard 
Nearly Met 

% Standard 
Not Met Grade 

Level 
15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 

Grade 11        2517.
5 

2547.
8 

2535.
3 

2 3.81 6.12 13 13.33 10.20 28 34.29 24.49 57 48.57 59.18 

All Grades        N/A N/A N/A 2 3.81 6.12 13 13.33 10.20 28 34.29 24.49 57 48.57 59.18 
 

Concepts & Procedures 
Applying mathematical concepts and procedures 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 11        7 11.43 9.18 29 22.86 23.47 64 65.71 67.35 
All Grades        
 
 

7 11.43 9.18 29 22.86 23.47 64 65.71 67.35 
 

Problem Solving & Modeling/Data Analysis 
Using appropriate tools and strategies to solve real world and mathematical problems 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 11        4 6.67 10.20 53 54.29 46.94 43 39.05 42.86 

All Grades        4 6.67 10.20 53 54.29 46.94 43 39.05 42.86 
 

Communicating Reasoning 
Demonstrating ability to support mathematical conclusions 

% Above Standard % At or Near Standard % Below Standard 
Grade Level 

15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 15-16 16-17 17-18 
Grade 11        4 6.67 9.18 51 60.95 54.08 45 32.38 36.73 

All Grades        4 6.67 9.18 51 60.95 54.08 45 32.38 36.73 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Participation rate was made for the 2017-18 school year.  A strong emphasis was placed on local assessment 

growth and CAASPP by the new principal and 2 of 3 new math staff from the outset of 2018/19 to ensure that all 
students take the test as well as ensuring that they understand the importance of the test and individual supports to 
close gaps.  All 11th graders had individual goal setting conferences with their math teacher, counselors and 
administration.        

441



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 14 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

2. The majority of students in Grade 11 (17-18) 83% were below standard.        

3. TBD 
 
The majority of students in Grade 11 (17-18) near standard and below standard in all 3 areas of Math that are 
measures on CAASPP.  There continues to be a strong emphasis placed on those students and moving them to "at 
or above standard".  An in depth look needs to be taken to see if classes are seeing the same weaknesses that are 
not tested with the CAASPP.  There has been a strong push for students to understand the importance of 
assessment.  We have also changed our Math curriculum in Fall 2017 to CPM and transitioning to a collaborative 
math teaching and learning approach with a mathematical mindset. 
        

 

442



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 15 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

ELPAC Results 
 

2017-18 Summative Assessment Data 
Number of Students and Mean Scale Scores for All Students 

Grade 
Level Overall Oral Language Written Language Number of 

Students Tested 
Grade 9        1565.9 1571.5 1560.1 14 

Grade 10        * * * * 

Grade 11        * * * * 

Grade 12        * * * * 

All Grades           36 
 

Overall Language 
Number and Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Grade 
Level # % # % # % # % 

Total Number of 
Students 

Grade 9        * * * * * * * * 14 

Grade 10        * * * * * * * * * 

Grade 11        * * * * * * * * * 

Grade 12        * * * * * *   * 

All Grades        * * 16 44.44 * * * * 36 
 

Oral Language 
Number and Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Grade 
Level # % # % # % # % 

Total Number of 
Students 

Grade 9        11 78.57 * * * *   14 

Grade 10        * * * * * * * * * 

Grade 11        * * * * * *   * 

Grade 12        * * * *     * 

All Grades        22 61.11 * * * * * * 36 
 

Written Language 
Number and Percentage of Students at Each Performance Level for All Students 

Level 4 Level 3 Level 2 Level 1 Grade 
Level # % # % # % # % 

Total Number of 
Students 

Grade 9          * * * * * * 14 

Grade 10          * * * * * * * 

Grade 11          * * * * * * * 

Grade 12        * * * * * * * * * 

All Grades        * * 14 38.89 13 36.11 * * 36 
 

443



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 16 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

Listening Domain 
Number and Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Grade 
Level Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number of 

Students 
Grade 9        * * * *   14 

Grade 10        * * * *   * 

Grade 11        * * * * * * * 

Grade 12        * * * *   * 

All Grades        15 41.67 19 52.78 * * 36 
 

Speaking Domain 
Number and Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Grade 
Level Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number of 

Students 
Grade 9        11 78.57 * *   14 

Grade 10        * * * * * * * 

Grade 11        * * * *   * 

Grade 12        * *     * 

All Grades        26 72.22 * * * * 36 
 

Reading Domain 
Number and Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Grade 
Level Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number of 

Students 
Grade 9        * * * * * * 14 

Grade 10          * * * * * 

Grade 11          * * * * * 

Grade 12          * * * * * 

All Grades        * * 18 50.00 15 41.67 36 
 

Writing Domain 
Number and Percentage of Students by Domain Performance Level for All Students 

Grade 
Level Well Developed Somewhat/Moderately Beginning Total Number of 

Students 
Grade 9        * * 13 92.86   14 

Grade 10        * * * * * * * 

Grade 11        * * * * * * * 

Grade 12        * * * *   * 

All Grades        * * 28 77.78 * * 36 
 

 
 

Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Participation rate was made for the 2017-18 school year.  A strong emphasis was placed on local assessment 

growth and CAASPP by the new principal and the ELA staff from the outset of 2018/19 to ensure that all students 
take the test as well as ensuring that they understand the importance of the test and individual supports to close 

444



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 17 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

gaps.  All 11th graders had individual goal setting conferences with their English teacher, counselors and 
administration.        

2. PHS invested in Listwise in the Spring of 2019 to assist all students in ELA/ELD skills. In 2019-20 an emphasis will 
be placed on the Listening Domain of ELA/ELD across the curricula to include History/Social Science, Science and 
VAPA.        

3. TBD        

 

445



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 18 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Student Population 
 
This section provides information about the school’s student population. 
 

2017-18 Student Population 

Total 
Enrollment 

436        
This is the total number of 
students enrolled. 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

69.3%        
This is the percent of students 
who are eligible for free or 
reduced priced meals; or have 
parents/guardians who did not 
receive a high school diploma. 

English  
Learners 

8.9%        
This is the percent of students 
who are learning to communicate 
effectively in English, typically 
requiring instruction in both the 
English Language and in their 
academic courses. 

Foster 
Youth 

0.2%        
This is the percent of students 
whose well-being is the 
responsibility of a court. 

 
2017-18 Enrollment for All Students/Student Group 

Student Group Total Percentage 

English Learners        39 8.9% 

Foster Youth        1 0.2% 

Homeless        18 4.1% 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged        302 69.3% 

Students with Disabilities        51 11.7% 
 

Enrollment by Race/Ethnicity 

Student Group Total Percentage 

African American        6 1.4% 

Asian        2 0.5% 

Filipino        1 0.2% 

Hispanic        321 73.6% 

Two or More Races        2 0.5% 

White        104 23.9% 
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The PHS 17/18 Enrollment was 436 students of which 302 students (69.3%) are Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

- 51 students (11.7%) are Students with Disabilities - 39 students (8.9%) are English Learning        
2. The site must continue to emphasize a career and college culture to all students with continued emphasis on 

underrepresented groups with GFSF, the 4-year portfolio which becomes a grad requirement in 2019/20, and 
Advisory Class.        

3. TBD        

 

446



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 19 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Overall Performance 
 

2018 Fall Dashboard Overall Performance for All Students 

Academic Performance 

 
English Language Arts 

 
Yellow        

 
Mathematics 

 
Orange        

 
English Learner Progress 

 
No Performance Color        

 
College/Career 

 
Blue        

Academic Engagement 

 
Graduation Rate 

 
Blue        

Conditions & Climate 

 
Suspension Rate 

 
Yellow        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The overall mission of our school district is to have every student college and career ready when they graduate 

from Pierce High School. The College Career Indicator is blue and we are proud of that.  However, as we dig 
deeper into the data there are many areas for continuous growth.        

2. We are working diligently as a district to improve our math thinking and mindset. The older our students get their 
mathematics scores drop which is synonymous to the state but Orange is unacceptable. Thus, the work to be done 
and changes needed.The largest change at the high school occured in 17/18 when Math 1 piloted CPM for the 
math curriculum. In 18/19 Math 2 CPM was added. Our math teachers are measuring growth by students as 
measured by the NWEA results. in 19/20 our first cohort of math students will have had three years of CPM 
curriculum and those 11th graders will take the CAASPP in April/May 2020. There is discussion in the Math PLC 
that now includes the 8th grade math teacher at JJH of expanding the CPM curriculum to 8th grade math as she is 
changing the mathematical mindset of those students.        

3. ELA is scored as a yellow on the Dashboard. The English Department has made changes in curriculum and 
received support periods to assist in reading and literacy skills. In 18/19 JJH instituted an additional english period 
for ALL students. That would include the incoming freshmen that enter Pierce High School in the Fall of 2019. In the 
19/20 the English grade level support will focus on skill development and closing the learning gap. The English 
Department is currently evaluating curriculum to achieve those learning and achievement goals.        

 

447



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 20 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Language Arts 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Equity Report 

Red        

0        
Orange        

0        
Yellow        

1        
Green        

1        
Blue        

0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 
 

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Yellow         

15.8 points above standard         

Maintained -2.9 points         

96 students        

English Learners 

 
No Performance Color         

69.5 points below standard         

Maintained 1.3 points         

18 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

4 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

2.6 points above standard         

Declined -3.6 points         

64 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

8 students        

 

448



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 21 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Green         

4.8 points above standard         

Increased 4.9 points         

69 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

 
No Performance Color         

55.2 points above standard         

Declined -29.1 points         

25 students        

 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the English Language Arts assessment. This measure is based on 
student performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 
and grade 11. 

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Arts Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

6 students        

Reclassified English Learners 

38.1 points below standard         

Increased 17.6 points         

12 students        

English Only 

45 points above standard         

Declined -22.7 points         

33 students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. ELA is scored as a yellow on the Dashboard. Hispanic is also yellow. The English Department has made changes in 

curriculum and received support periods to assist in reading and literacy skills. In 18/19 JJH instituted an additional 
english period for ALL students. That would include the incoming freshmen that enter Pierce High School in the Fall 
of 2019. In the 19/20 the English grade level support will focus on skill development and closing the learning gap. 
The English Department is currently evaluating curriculum to achieve those learning and achievement goals.        

2. Our ELA data comparisons for ELs is driving the need for change and enhancements for our Reclassified English 
Learners and English Only ELs. in 19/20 our ELD periods will increase from 3 courses to 4 levels (Newcomer, ELD1, 
ELD2 and ELD3) with the Newcomers and ELD1 classes will be back to back periods being taught by the two high 
school teachers that will include the JJH students as our demographics change.        

3. For our "English Only" ELs who declined 22.7 points in 17/18 we will offer an ELD/ELA support period. Curriculum is 
also being evaluated for our Long-Term ELs.        

 

449



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 22 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
Mathematics 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Equity Report 

Red        

0        
Orange        

1        
Yellow        

1        
Green        

0        
Blue        

0        
 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Orange         

90.8 points below standard         

Declined -9.3 points         

96 students        

English Learners 

 
No Performance Color         

183.6 points below standard         

Declined -23.9 points         

18 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

4 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Orange         

102.5 points below standard         

Declined -5.6 points         

64 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

8 students        

 

450



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 23 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

2018 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Performance by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

94.4 points below standard         

Increased 7 points         

69 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

 
No Performance Color         

71.5 points below standard         

Declined -47.7 points         

25 students        

 
This section provides a view of Student Assessment Results and other aspects of this school’s performance, specifically 
how well students are meeting grade-level standards on the Mathematics assessment. This measure is based on student 
performance on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment, which is taken annually by students in grades 3–8 and 
grade 11. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Mathematics Data Comparisons for English Learners 

Current English Learner 

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

6 students        

Reclassified English Learners 

170.3 points below standard         

Declined -20.5 points         

12 students        

English Only 

77.6 points below standard         

Declined -43.7 points         

33 students        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The PHS math data portrayed on the CA Dashboard from CAASPP demonstrates very low metrics from the class of 

2019 when they were tested as 11th grade students in Spring 2018 - 90.8 points below standard and a decline of -
9.3 points. A change to more of a mathematical mindset and change in math curriculum to College Preparatory 
Mathematics in Fall of 2017 at the IM 1 level and continued in Fall of 2018 to the IM 2 level. In the Fall of 2019 the 
implementation of the CPM curriculum in IM 1 through IM 3 will be completed. Many of the metrics, internal 
assessments and mathematical discourse in math classes are demonstrating a better grasp of mathematical 
standards and math conversations/collaborations with room for continuous improvement.        

2. Our mathematics data comparisons for ELs is driving the need for change and enhancements for our Reclassified 
English Learners in math (170.3 points below standard and declined -20.5 points) and English Only ELs (77.6 points 
below standard and declined -20.5 points). in 19/20 our ELD periods will increase from 3 courses to 4 levels 
(Newcomer, ELD1, ELD2 and ELD3) with the Newcomers and ELD1 classes will be back to back periods being taught 
by the two high school teachers that will include the JJH students as our demographics change.        

 

451



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 24 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
English Learner Progress 

 
This section provides a view of the percent of students performing at each level on the new English Language Proficiency 
Assessments for California (ELPAC) assessment.  With the transition ELPAC, the 2018 Dashboard is unable to report a 
performance level (color) for this measure. 

2018 Fall Dashboard English Language Proficiency Assessments for California Results 

Number of  
Students 

 
36        

Level 4 
Well 

Developed 
25%        

Level 3 
Moderately 
Developed 

44.4%        

Level 2 
Somewhat 
Developed 

16.7%        

Level 1 
Beginning 

Stage 
13.9%        

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Of the 36 PHS students who took the new English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC) 

assessment 44.4% were Level 3 Moderately Developed - 25% were Level 4 Well Developed.        
2. Our mathematics data comparisons for ELs is driving the need for change and enhancements for our Reclassified 

English Learners in math (170.3 points below standard and declined -20.5 points) and English Only ELs (77.6 points 
below standard and declined -20.5 points). in 19/20 our ELD periods will increase from 3 courses to 4 levels 
(Newcomer, ELD1, ELD2 and ELD3) with the Newcomers and ELD1 classes will be back to back periods being taught 
by the two high school teachers that will include the JJH students as our demographics change.        

 

452



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 25 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Performance 
College/Career 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard College/Career Equity Report 

Red        

0        
Orange        

0        
Yellow        

0        
Green        

0        
Blue        

2        
 
This section provides information on the percentage of high school graduates who are placed in the "Prepared" level on the 
College/Career Indicator. 

2018 Fall Dashboard College/Career for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Blue         

65% prepared         

Increased 9%         

103 students        

English Learners 

 
No Performance Color         

41.2% prepared         

Increased 14.5%         

17 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

3 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Blue         

61.7% prepared         

Increased 15.8%         

81 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

10 students        

 

453



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 26 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

2018 Fall Dashboard College/Career by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Hispanic 

 
Blue         

61% prepared         

Increased 12.4%         

77 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

 
No Performance Color         

75% prepared         

Maintained -1%         

24 students        

 
This section provides a view of the percent of students per year that qualify as Not Prepared, Approaching Prepared, and 
Prepared. 

2018 Fall Dashboard College/Career 3-Year Performance 

Class of 2016 
46% Prepared         

42.5% Approaching Prepared         
11.5% Not Prepared         

Class of 2017 
56 Prepared         

32 Approaching Prepared         
12 Not Prepared         

Class of 2018 
65 Prepared         

19.4 Approaching Prepared         
15.5 Not Prepared         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. Pierce High School graduates have steadily increased their College Career Performance over the past three years. 

46% (2016) - 56% (2017) - 65% (2018) PHS must continue this strong push for ALL students to be career and college 
ready.        

2. The "Not Prepared" at Pierce High School for graduates as measured by College Career Performance over the past 
three years. 11.5% (2016) - 12% (2017) - 15.5% (2018) is slightly rising.        

3. Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students in the Class of 2018 nearly reflect the total school percentage (61.7% 
prepared with the increase of 15.8%).  EL students in teh Class of 2018 (41.2% prepared with the increase of 14.5%)        

 

454



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 27 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Chronic Absenteeism 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance 

 
Red 

 
Orange 

 
Yellow 

 
Green 

 
Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism Equity Report 

Red        Orange        Yellow        Green        Blue        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 8 who are absent 10 
percent or more of the instructional days they were enrolled. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism for All Students/Student Group 

All Students English Learners Foster Youth 

Homeless Socioeconomically Disadvantaged Students with Disabilities 
 

2018 Fall Dashboard Chronic Absenteeism by Race/Ethnicity 

African American American Indian Asian     Filipino 

Hispanic Two or More Races Pacific Islander White     
 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. No data for high schools given        

 

455



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 28 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Academic Engagement 
Graduation Rate 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate Equity Report 

Red        

0        
Orange        

0        
Yellow        

0        
Green        

0        
Blue        

2        
 
This section provides information about students completing high school, which includes students who receive a standard 
high school diploma or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Blue         

98.1% graduated         

Increased +1.1%         

103 students        

English Learners 

 
No Performance Color         

94.1% graduated         

Declined -5.9%         

17 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

3 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Blue         

98.8% graduated         

Increased +1.5%         

81 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          

10 students        

 

456



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 29 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

2018 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          

1 students        

Hispanic 

 
Blue         

98.7% graduated         

Increased +2.9%         

77 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

 
No Performance Color         

95.8% graduated         

Declined -4.2%         

24 students        

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who received a high school diploma within four years of 
entering ninth grade or complete their graduation requirements at an alternative school. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Graduation Rate by Year 

2017         
97% graduated         

2018         
98.1% graduated         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. The Dashboard data for 2018 shows BLUE for all students (98.1%) and all student groups are over 94%        

2. The Dashboard data for 2018 shows BLUE for EL students (94.1%)  but a decline of -5.9%.        

 

457



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 30 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

School and Student Performance Data 
 

Conditions & Climate 
Suspension Rate 

 
The performance levels are color-coded and range from lowest-to-highest performance in the following order: 
 
Lowest 
Performance  

Red 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Green 
 

Blue 

Highest 
Performance 

 
This section provides number of student groups in each color. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate Equity Report 

Red        

2        
Orange        

0        
Yellow        

3        
Green        

0        
Blue        

0        
 
This section provides information about the percentage of students in kindergarten through grade 12 who have been 
suspended at least once in a given school year. Students who are suspended multiple times are only counted once. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students/Student Group 

All Students 

 
Yellow         

7.4% suspended at least once         

Declined -1.7%         
447 students        

English Learners 

 
Red         

16.7% suspended at least once         

Maintained 0%         
42 students        

Foster Youth 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data Not 
Displayed for Privacy          2 students        

Homeless 

 
No Performance Color         

4.8% suspended at least once         

Increased 4.8%         
21 students        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 

 
Yellow         

7.9% suspended at least once         

Declined -1.6%         
316 students        

Students with Disabilities 

 
Red         

15.4% suspended at least once         

Increased 6%         
52 students        

 

458



School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) Page 31 of 61 Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School

2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Race/Ethnicity 

African American 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          7 students        

American Indian 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

Asian     

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2 students        

Filipino 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          1 students        

Hispanic 

 
Yellow         

7.6% suspended at least 
once         

Declined -1%         
330 students        

Two or More Races 

 
No Performance Color         

Less than 11 Students - Data 
Not Displayed for Privacy          2 students        

Pacific Islander 

 
No Performance Color         

0 Students        

White     

 
Yellow         

6.7% suspended at least 
once         

Declined -1.8%         
105 students        

 
This section provides a view of the percentage of students who were suspended. 

2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate by Year 

2016     
9.5% suspended at least once         

2017     
9.1% suspended at least once         

2018     
7.4% suspended at least once         

 
Conclusions based on this data: 
1. 2018 Fall Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students is YELLOW (7.4% suspended at least once) Declined -1.7%        

2. Dashboard Suspension Rate for All Students shows a decline of students suspended at least once in the past three 
years 2016 (9.5%) - 2017 (9.1%) - 2018 (7.4%)        

3. TBD        

 

459


	Button4: 
	Button5: 
	Button6: 
	Button7: 
	Button8: 
	Button9: 
	Button10: 


